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Financial Highlights
HBHE

Lol e iPa B December 2020 Changes

2021%12A 2020412 A 25
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T %
Key financial information ZH I E R
Revenue WA 870,422 692,319 25.7%
Gross profit EH 299,082 235,757 26.9%
Profit for the period HA R AR 110,050 105,807 4.0%
—Including non-controlling interests ~ — B IE JEIER S 11,828 8,617 37.3%
— Attributable to owners of the — RRAHEE AEL
Company 98,222 97,190 1.1%
December 2021 December 2020
2021%12A 2020412 A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT AREF T
Total assets BERTE 1,238,537 444,943
Total liabilities BfER%E 378,326 356,515
Cash and bank balance He KIRITERER 499,983 229,212
Total equity w8 860,211 88,428
Interest attributable to the owners of ZANAEIEH AEGHEZ
the Company 835,657 75,870
2020
20204
Key financial ratios TBEFG =R
Gross profit margin ERE 34.4% 34.1%
Net profit margin = 12.6% 15.3%
Net profit margin attributable to the AN &% HE A FE(L
owners of the Company FRE R 11.3% 14.0%
Basic and diluted earnings per share & B%E AN K #5% 2 7
(RMB cent) (AR¥TT) 0.118 0.136
December 2021 December 2020
2021%12A 2020412 A
Total property management RMEHRRWEERBA
contracted GFA as at the end of RRBEME (FF7K)
reporting period (sgq.m. '‘000) 46,363 38,032

Total property management GFA R ERREERBRE
under management as at the end EREEE (FFFHK)
of reporting period (sg.m. '000) 31,110 24,905
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On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period”).

As the saying goes, “everything flows like water and never stands still”.
2021 was a year full of changes and opportunities with turbulence in
capital market and emergence of new industries. The fierce competition
on an enterprise scale imposes higher requirements for the
independent expansion capacities of property management companies,
while encouraging them to explore differentiated development. As a key
service industry “getting through the last mile”, in a year of “dark
clouds overshadowing on us”, the property management industry
braved new changes and constantly highlighted the value of services.
With relevant ancillary policies to further guide enterprises to transform
towards the “property + life service” model, we made continuous
efforts in innovation, constantly expanded industrial boundaries and
actively fostered core business growth points.

This year, we strived in continuing our expansion in many aspects. In
2021, with the industry being disturbed by turbulence, it has become a
normal trend for property enterprises to seek for independent
development and have “less reliance on real estate” The
independence of the property management industry has been
continuously enhanced. We have always adhered to the market
development strategy on quality expansion, gave full play to our strong
capability on market development and obtained high-quality third-party
projects through tender and bidding, joint ventures and cooperation. In
an intensely competitive industry, we met quality property developers,
business operators, asset managers as well as local and urban
investors and builders in our cooperation ecosystem. Our strategic
cooperation fosters a win-win situation with complementary business
types and strong alliance, whereby it facilitated us in seizing market
opportunities and further expanding our market share in the region. As
at 31 December 2021, our contracted GFA and GFA under
management reached 46.36 million square metres (sg.m.) and 31.11
million sg.m., respectively. Among the new GFA under management
during the year, 71% is from third parties, which enables the Group to
maintain our distinctive feature with outstanding market-based
operation capability in the industry.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

During the year, we adhered to our original aspirations and made solid
progresses. Following the “customer-centric” service concept, we
gathered our strengths and continued to work diligently to build an
integrated service system radiating the full lifecycle of property
management, propel the development of property management services
towards standardisation and refinement and provide quality services to
property owners beyond their expectations. We conducted spectacular
works within restricted arena. By focusing on the theme of community
governance and service innovation, we established cooperation with
Rehe South Road Sub-district in Gulou District, Nanjing, in serving old
communities and continuously penetrating into smart community and
urban services. In addition, we constantly enhanced our service
capability on the non-residential property segment and entered into a
cooperation agreement with The International Butler Academy (TIBA).
Meanwhile, we launched “DOTHINK SPACE”, a high-end service brand,
to facilitate the preservation and enhancement of the value of
commercial and office buildings. In 2021, our ranking in the Top 100
Property Management Companies in the PRC organized by China Index
Academy (CIA) evaluation moved up to the 25th place. Leveraging our
high-quality services and brand capabilities, we successfully signed
contracts for The 19th Asian Games Hangzhou 2022 as an officially
designated property management service provider.

This year, we made intensive and meticulous efforts and embraced
new changes. Getting close to and serving life have become new
orientations of industrial changes. Property management services
gradually meet the increasingly refined demands of property owners.
Under the general policy background of “promoting consumption and
expanding internal demands” and “property service + life service”, the
Group’s value-added community services enjoy tremendous
development potential. We believe that we can create value through
responding to changes and innovation. The Group has developed the
“15-minute life circle” through innovative business models. By focusing
on the core appeals in the full life cycle of people and in line with the
expectations under government new policies, we deployed new retail,
home decoration, asset management and other services from the life
perspective. At the same time, considering the demands of the elderly
and children under residential scenarios, we piloted the exploration of
relevant business models on child and elderly care. Through the
establishment of a new service ecosystem with online and offline
linkage, we integrated more brand merchants and service resources,
strengthened the ties and relationships with suppliers, enriched
upstream and downstream service chains and enhanced platform
ecological extension to bring more convenient experience to the
families of property owners.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021

E—F o RMERTL  (TEREE - RATUE
EBdul  MRBEIES  BLEN it e
REMEETE2 A AR —BLREBER
EHMEETRERBPZZECBALT RE
B AETIREBHEHORERE - BYR
BIMGES - AT 2B BEdmEaEM
REEIFE—E8 HMEEARERTR
BHEEXNRBEEZENENEE EE S
& PR ARIS BIIFERF - AN - RAITER
REEEEMEREARE N - ETIBARH H
K& K Z 7 (The International Butler Academy)
FETAERE BN #ESikREmE
[DOTHINK SPACE|B) N & FIZ2RE 1
B ° 20214 « NEBEFIERAZH P BIE
ARl BERIRFAEESN - BEREE
BRI DMBIE N - BRIERTE HIEEWER
TR - KN E LI MN2022F £19/8 8
& o

EF RMBHTE DHKE BT L
A RIBEE  RITERECNHER - XEH
KBmBAL MERBEEVMAER EEH
[MEH ERAT M X IRT+E7E IR | #9 I
RRERT HEBREERB=EER - RMAMA
5 BE RIMAEAEEE A5EBBA
MEBENITET M0 EEEE] - BEEAR
E2AMBHTOZLFFE  REBERFTHNH
2 ELERGRGRATE KEXE BEEE®
BERS RERMAEESZHEEEEES
ENHER AHBRERYPE BEHRBERHR
X BBITER LR THBOMBGH LR B
BEZRMARMRBEER BICHERMRE
BRE BERE L TEEE NRTFanE
RBtR RETRETREEEOER -



During the year, we achieved breakthroughs and forged ahead. By
taking full advantage of the boost, one can make progress. Leveraging
the big data-based construction, we have established an intelligent
community service system and piloted scenario-based applications. Our
“Companion” big data centre is promoting the construction of the
Internet of Things platform and has achieved work efficiency
improvement and operating costs reduction in security enhancement in
parks, energy consumption management on buildings and equipment
and facilities operation monitoring. We also launched contact-free
delivery services by robots during the resurgence of the pandemic
which were highly recognised by property owners. At the same time,
we have also deeply participated in the construction of future
communities in Zhejiang and the service scenarios with convenient
technologies in various residential projects in Hangzhou and Wenzhou
will be around the corner. Moreover, “carbon neutrality” and “carbon
peak” will be the social theme and progress trend in the coming years.
By virtue of technology empowerment, we will actively participate in
technology application and innovation on energy conservation and
consumption reduction and build demonstration scenarios for “carbon
peak” and “carbon neutrality” services.

No man is an island, entire of itself; every man is a piece of the
continent, a part of the main. For the demands for property services in
the future, we believe that “relationship” is the link between people and
the world. “Relationship” is not only the foundation and precondition for
building a beautiful life, but also a key to facilitate the upgrading of
property services towards all-dimensional, all-asset and all-cycle
direction. With our insight on relationship, we upgraded the brand
system of Dexin Services and created the unique brand symbol — Ul+
to make our market image clearer. We conducted our industrial chain
layout in four dimensions, namely the relationship between people and
space, people and life, among people as well as people and future,
and proposed the development mission of being a “service provider of
future urban life relationship”.

In addition, under the “carbon peak” and “carbon neutrality” policy
background put forth by the government, we took the lead to respond
to the policy requirements within the industry and released our first
white paper on carbon neutrality. We also put forward the “T.H.LN.K
carbon neutrality management system on properties” to provide action
ideas on transforming towards carbon neutrality in the lifecycle
operation and management of the industry through five major
segments, namely Technology — technology empowerment, Health —
healthy life, Intelligence — intelligent brain, Neutral — natural
compensation and Knowledge — knowledge publicity.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

FUTURE PROSPECTS KRIKRE

The alternation of old and new is the theory of nature. Embarking on a ST/ BB T8 - BT RIBEE REF o T2
new journey will redefine new development. With relevant ancilary E¥EEHEE BEHBEEEREE—#5)
policies further guiding enterprises to transform towards the “property Ed2E [P+ £ FRE I EXNEL - YR
+ life service” model, the relationship between property and life will be A EREEBEE —FEP - FE[RBWHE
further reshaped. Under the strategic vision of being a “service EEAGRIRIEHE|NEBEESH  HABYWER
provider of future urban life relationship”, we will further temper and SHAA B HEEHREE - FEEF - THn=E
thicken the endogenous energy of property management services, AEXER BRIFFEKZLOERD ZEHi
conduct continuous innovation, constantly expand industrial boundaries, ZAEBEITEKSEE8EE  BEEEEENT K
actively foster core business growth points, focus on building the M A EBERIERE] © AR AR RSB LD
Group into a “service provider of future urban life relationship” with #EREERIEHEF 2 — NP K8 B ZHTE
high-quality development and stable and continuous growth and strive  E [ o

to achieve the medium- and long-term objective of becoming one of

leading property management services providers in the PRC.

Dexin Services Group Limited BEERSEABRAT
Hu Yiping EER

Chairman HH—F

27 May 2022 2022F5H27H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATION REVIEW

Business model of the Group

The Group has three business lines: (i) property management services;
(i) value-added services to non-property owners; and (i) community
value-added services, which constitute a comprehensive service
product for our clients, covering the entire property management value
chain.

° Property management services. The Group provides property
developers, property owners and residents with a wide range of
property management services. The property management
services of the Group primarily comprise (i) security services; (ii)
cleaning services; (i) gardening services; and (iv) common area
facility repair and maintenance services for residential properties
and non-residential properties.

° Value-added services to non-property owners. The Group
provides a full range of property-related business solutions to
non-property owners, which primarily include property developers.
The value-added services to non-property owners of the Group
primarily comprise the provision of (i) sales office management
services; (i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services;
(i) property inspection and repair services; and (iv) commercial
consulting services.

° Community value-added services. The Group also offers various
community value-added services to property owners and
residents, including () smart community solutions; (i) property
sales and assistance services; (iii)j community resources
value-added services; (iv) clubhouse services; (v) home decoration
services; and (vi) community retail and home services.

We believe that the property management services business line is the
foundation of the Group to generate revenue, expand business scale
and enlarge customer group for community value-added services of
property owners and residents. The Group’s value-added services to
non-property owners facilitate its early access to property development
projects and the establishment and development of business
relationships with property developers, thereby enhancing the Group’s
competitiveness and securing contracts for property management
services. The Group’s community value-added services business line is
conducive to strengthening the relationship between the Group and
customers and improve customer satisfaction and loyalty. We believe
that the three business lines of the Group will continue to help the
Group gain bigger market share and expand its business scope in the
PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB ERT R RS

Property Management Services

The Group adhered to its strategic objective of rapid expansion of GFA
under management and achieved fast growth in contracted GFA and
GFA under management. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had contracted GFA of approximately 46.4 million sg.m. and
309 contracted projects, representing an increase of 21.9% and 28.2%
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2020, respectively. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s recorded revenue was
represented by approximately 31.1 million sg.m. of GFA under
management and 233 projects under management, representing an
increase of approximately 24.9% and 33.1% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020, respectively.

The following table sets forth our property management contracted
GFA and GFA under management as of the years indicated:

MEEERE

AEFMEBFRRIEATIEMBEMNEEEZ
REXNEEEDENTEZETENRRIGRE -
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE @ AEENENE
HLEBELN HA64BEF K - A48 E #E309
i - 5 R EE E2020F 12 A31H L FEHE K
21.9% % 28.2% : & £2021F 12 A31H 1L F
B ASBERESRANEEREEDBEDLY
ST1EEBFAHK  EEHEEHEA233ME - D5
BEZE2020F 12 A31 BILFEEEE424.9% K&
33.1% °

i

\

TREINBEMRFERMANMETES R
KHEMEERERE

For the year ended 31 December

For the year ended 31 December

HE12ABLERE HZ12A31BILFE
2021 2020
20214 20204

Contracted projects

Projects under

management Contracted projects Projects under management

#HIEE #EEH BHER EEER
Number of Number of Number of Number of
projects GFA projects GFA projects GFA projects GFA
FEYE BEER FEYE BEER HEHE BEEE HEHE BEEE
(sq.m.’000) (sq.m.’000) (sg.m.’000) (sg.m.’000)
(FEHX) (FEHXK) (FFAHK) (FFAHK)
As of the beginning of ~ HEF 1]
the year 241 38,032 175 24,905 201 31,113 144 20,652
Newly contracted K| 80 10,531 49 5,994 53 9,082 44 6,416
Converted reserves FEElL - - 21 2,411 - - - -
Termination &b (12) (2,200) (12) (2,200) (19) (2,163) (19) (2,163)
As of the end of HEFR
the year 309 46,363 233 31,110 241 38,032 175 24,905

A majority of our revenue from property management services is
generated from the services provided to properties developed by
independent third-party property developers. For the year ended 31
December 2021, we had 147 properties under our management that
were developed by independent third-party property developers with a
total GFA under management of approximately 20.6 million sg.m.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total GFA under
management by property type as of the years indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RS

TREIBEMRFERMZDEREE D H
EEBRERERAD

As of 31 December 2021 As of 31 December 2020
#1£20214£12R318 H1£2020612 A31H
GFA under GFA under
management Revenue  Percentage [EUENEINE Revenue Percentage
EEEE KA 174 EEEE WA =54
$0.m.’000 RMB'000 % sg.m.'000 RMB'000 %
FEAX  AREFR % TEAK  ARETFR %
Properties developed by Dexin Group {5 EBEFE%NE 6,884 138,664 214 5,639 98,822 26.7
Jointly developed properties BaREME 3,660 100,610 19.8 3,115 54,997 148
Properties developed by independent S8V £ = h I ER%EHE

third party property developers REMNE 20,566 267,809 52.8 16,151 216,596 58.5
31,110 507,083 100.0 24,905 370,415 100.0

Our Geographical Presence E MR 5

Zhejiang Province and the Yangtze River Delta Region are among the
most economically developed regions in the PRC, with higher
urbanisation rates and resident disposable income. Most of our service
projects are concentrated in cities with higher competitive pricing levels.
We continue to expand into first-tier and second-tier cities nationwide,
and continue to increase the GFA under management and income from
core cities outside Zhejiang Province and the Yangtze River Delta
Region, further intensifying our competitive strength in the property
management service industry. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
we have expanded our geographic presence to 38 cities in China.

AT RETI=ZAMNME R B EREEN
E2— BELCERERASBEBRARS - &
MIREHIEE KO REEREKERE HE
BHET - R EHREE2E——&HMH -
BT AT R EIT = BN DI EE
AERKA  EERMEEAMERFEH - HE
202112 AB1AIEFE - MWL HEE
R E R E38EW T -

20218« BERSKEAFRAT 13



©o

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB ERT R RS

The following table sets forth our total
region as of the years indicated:

GFA under management by

TREBEMTIFERMZEBEHAIDNEE
ZEES -

As of 31 December 2021

As of 31 December 2020

#1£20214%12A318 H1E20206 12 A31H
GFA under GFA under

management O EGENEREI  management Revenue Percentage
EEEE KA 174 EEEE WA =54
$0.m.’000 RMB’000 % sg.m.'000 RMB'000 %
FEHE  ARMTR [l TTK ARETR %
Zhejiang Province T 19,679 383,898 75.7 17,159 264,690 5
Yangtze River Delta Region R=A 9,393 110,742 21.8 7,228 95,920 25.9
Others i 2,038 12,443 2.5 518 9,805 2.6
31,110 507,083 100.0 24,905 370,415 100.0

Portfolio of Properties under Management EEYEES

While the majority of properties under our management are primarily
attributable to residential properties, we have continuously sought to
provide property management services to non-residential properties in
the Reporting Period. The non-residential properties under our
management are diverse, including commercial complexes, office
buildings, schools, hospitals, industrial properties and municipal
facilities. For the year ended 31 December 2021, we had 38 new
non-residential projects. We believe that by accumulating our
experience and recognition for the quality of our property management
services provided to both residential and non-residential properties, we
will be able to continue to diversify our portfolio of properties and
further enlarge our customer base.
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The following table sets forth the total GFA under management as of

the years indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RS

TR BMBEMRFENEE REZEEAE

As of 31 December 2021

As of 31 December 2020

#1£2021F12B318 BE20205 128318
GFA under GFA under
management Revenue  Percentage [EUENEINE Revenue Percentage
EEERE KA 1t EEEE KA it
5q.m.'000 RMB’000 % $0.m.’000 RMB’000 %
TERX  ARETR % FERK  AREFRL %
Residential = 22,655 359,120 70.8 18,804 252,100 68.1
Non-residential FEZ 8,455 147,963 29.2 6,011 118,315 319
31,110 507,083 100.0 24,905 370,415 100.0
Value-added Services to Non-property Owners FEEFHERE

We offer a series of value-added services to non-property owners,
which primarily include property developers. These services include (i)
sales office management services; (i) preliminary planning and design
consultancy services; (i) property inspection and repair services; and
(iv) commercial consulting services. During the Reporting Period,
revenue from value-added services to non-property owners was
approximately RMB180.9 million, representing an increase of 1.2% as
compared with the same period in 2020, which generally remained
stable.

BAAEEE (FZREDEMER) RERT
BERT - ZERBEIE  (VRSRS : ()FTN
IR : (i EREERE  RvEEZARS -
RARERBA - FEFLERBUADAR
#180.98 & 7T - B2020F R B K£1.2% - £
TIRFEIETE ©

For the year ended
31 December 2021
£0£2021F 12 A 31 B 1L F E el L Py R R= N3 5

For the year ended
31 December 2020

Revenue Percentage Revenue  Percentage

[N (174 WA fht

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

ARETX | AR®TF T %

Sales office management services =% iR 7% 88,077 48.7 89,571 50.1

Preliminary planning and design A 97 AR 7§

consultancy services 54,366 30.1 68,129 38.1
Property inspection and repair EBEEBRE

services 12,013 6.6 13,205 7.4

Commercial consulting services & ¥ & ARG 26,458 14.6 7,876 4.4

180,914 100.0 178,781 100.0
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Community Value-added Services

In terms of community value-added services, we offer a wide variety of
community value-added services to make living more convenient and to
foster community attachment and sense of belonging. Customers of
our community value-added services primarily include property owners,
residents and property developers. These services primarily include (i)
smart community solutions; (ii) property sales and assistance services;
(iii) community resources value-added services; (iv) clubhouse services;
(v) home decoration services; and (vij community retail and home
services.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from community value-added
services was approximately RMB182.4 million, representing an increase
of 27.5% as compared with approximately RMB143.1 million for the
same period in 2020. Such increase is primarily attributable to the
increase in revenue from home decoration services as well as
community retail and home services business during the Reporting
Period.

#HERERS

FALEBEREME BHMRESEEZMOL
BEERERE  FHEFEEE  EEHREBR
NRER - Rt EREERENEFPFEERE
XX FPURMEMRERN ZERBZER
FEHE et BERT R (\WEHE LB HER
% (iR EREERS  (WEMRE  WE
BER : RVittREEMNRERS -

RAREHE - (LEIBEREKRAENARE
182.4F BT » BW2020F RO ARKE143.18H
BT MN27.5% c ZERETERNEMAOER
FRFSANAt [E T E R R E R EB AR RS E
AT -

For the year ended
31 December 2021

For the year ended
31 December 2020

CEPIPAEAPE IS8 A F2020F 1231 HIEFE

Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage

A 15k WA it

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

ARETR U ARETIT %

Smart community solutions BREMBRBATER 48,632 26.6 49,216 34.4
Property sales and assistance W3 B E R 5 i RS

services 54,467 29.9 50,437 35.2

Community resources value-added — # & & RIZERH

services 19,661 10.8 16,324 1.4

Clubhouse services TR 12,984 741 12,373 8.6

Home decoration services XE R 23,781 13.0 6,351 4.4

Community retail and home services tL[EZEMR E R 22,900 12.6 8,422 6.0

182,425 100.0 143,123 100.0
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB870.4 million, representing an increase of 25.7% as
compared with RMB692.3 million for the same period in 2020. The
Group’s revenue was derived from three major business lines: (i)
property management services; (i) value-added services to non-
property owners; and (iii) community value-added services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business
line during the years indicated, both in absolute amount and as a
percentage of total revenue:

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RS

A ¥5 1 BR

L DN

RAHRERHE  TEEERPAHARKES70.4
BB B2020F RAHAARE22.3B 8T
EIN25.7% - REBMAWARE ZGEEXK
o ()VEEIERE () IFEEERER M (i)
@I ERTE -

TREIRARFEZEBRE DR ARA
(BB RERRANBDLIIR) :

For the year ended
31 December 2021

For the year ended
31 December 2020

#E2021512A318 B E2020F12A31H
HEE LEE
Revenue Percentage Revenue  Percentage Change
[ PN 174 WA (35 gE)
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR i AR TIT %
Property management MEBEERY
services 507,083 58.2 370,415 53.5 36.9%
Value-added services to non-  3F 3 T2 ERT
property owners 180,914 20.8 178,781 25.8 1.2%
Community value-added A E RS
services 182,425 21.0 143,123 20.7 27.5%
870,422 100.0 692,319 100.0 25.7%

Property management services remained the largest source of revenue
for the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from
property management services reached approximately RMB507.1
million, accounting for 58.2% of the Group’s total revenue. The growth
in revenue was attributable to the rapid growth in GFA under
management due to the increase of properties delivered and its efforts
to expand its third party customer base. The increase in revenue from
community value-added services was mainly attributable to the increase
in revenue from home decoration services as well as community retail
and home services.

MESERBDEAEENRARARR - &
E2021F12 A1 BIEFE  MEEEREWA
ERMARKES07TABE T HAEBEBKALN
58.2% - BN ARESERNEETERETER
RER - WIARAEERIMNER NG MEE
BORBERE=Z A BFEBRB - REHLEE
RIS ERBWAEMNEZHREMOER T
ETEEMREBEETHEBEFRAL -
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group primarily comprises staff cost,
subcontracting expenses, greening and landscaping costs, electricity
and water expenses, taxes and surcharges. In 2021, cost of sales of
the Group was approximately RMB571.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately 25.1% as compared to approximately
RMB456.6 million for the same period in 2020. The increase in cost of
sales was mainly due to the rapid growth of the Group’s business
scale.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

In 2021, gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB299.1
million, representing an increase of approximately 26.8% as compared
to approximately RMB235.8 million for the same period in 2020. In
2021, gross profit margin of the Group was 34.4%, representing an
increase of approximately 0.3 percentage point as compared to 34.1%
for the same period in 2020, which was mainly due to the increase in
gross profit as a result of economies of scale.

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin by business line
for the years indicated:

HERE

AEENEERATEREETIRA - 2BE
B S RBEEXA - KBRS - BIE &M
BEZo2021F  AEBMNHEEXNADARE
571.3B& 7T © BK2020F A Hr 4 A R #456.6
AETTERLN251% - HEKXAMIENES A
RAEEMEBHREELSRIER -

EFIREAE

2021F  AEEMEMHARKE2015E
JC 0 B2020F R AR #235.8F Bt 0 1
1R #926.8% ° 20214 + A& E M EF X &
34.4% + #2020F [ HiH)34.1% * 2 F+490.31H
B FERASFEISERNEFNIRS -

TRBIRFRERREBHHRIHHER % -

For the year

For the year

ended ended
K3 WYY Tl 31 December
2021 2020
H E20214 B £2020F
12A31H 12H31H
I E IEFE
Gross profit Gross profit
margin margin Change
ER=E EF* &
% %
Property management services I ER-BEN 26.4 26.3 0.1%
Value-added services to non-property  3F 3 - IZ{E R &
owners 42.3 42.0 0.3%
Community value-added services = IGE R 48.6 44.2 4.4%
34.4 34.1 0.3%

In particular, our gross profit margin from community value-added
services increased by 4.4 percentage points, which was primarily due
to the upgrading of our purchase and resell service model to a
commission-based service model, which had substantially reduced our
costs of providing such services.
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Selling and Marketing Expenses

In 2021, the selling and marketing expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB14.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 78.3% as compared to approximately RMB7.9 million for
the same period in 2020. Such increase was mainly due to (i) an
increase in the number of employees we hired due to our scale
expansion; and (i) an increase in expenses paid to sales support and
marketing personnel in line with revenue growth and business
expansion.

Administrative Expenses

In 2021, the administrative expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB146.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 49.7% as compared to approximately RMB97.7 million
for the same period in 2020, which was mainly due to the increase in
expenses resulting from business expansion.

Net Impairment Reversal/(Losses) on Financial
Assets

In 2021, the net impairment reversal on financial assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMBO0.7 million, as compared to net
impairment loss of approximately RMB2.7 million for the same period in
2020. Such changes in the net impairment losses were attributable to
the reversal of loss allowance on other receivables of RMB1.7 million,
which was partially offset by the provision of impairment loss on trade
receivables of RMB1 million during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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SHERZHMAX

2021F  AREMHEEREHEHATHARE
141EH BT B2020F A ARKE798
BT INAI78.3% + EE M) EFIRIERAE
HEMEAMHE T AZEMN : Ri)EHHEEX
BMEHABRNEAEZRALERMERRER
g o

TTER X

20214 AREMTHAXHARKE146.38
Bt BR020F MM ARKI7T.7AETIE
IN#I49.7% - EE RN EHIETE MG
KEINFTER -

EREERERE (HH) T8
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ARM07EE L 20204 [ £ AR (E E B
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Other Income

In 2021, other income and gains of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB14.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 126.6% as compared to approximately RMB6.4 million
for the same period in 2020. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in government grants.

Other (losses)/gains — net

In 2021, the Group recorded other losses — net of approximately
RMB11.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB13.5
million as compared to other gains — net of approximately RMB1.9
million for the same period in 2020, which was mainly due to the
effect of currency exchange losses recorded in the Reporting Period.

Finance Income — net

In 2021, the finance income — net of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB3.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB2.7 million or 540% as compared to approximately
RMBO0.5 million for the same period in 2020. Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in interest income from bank deposits.

Income tax expenses

In 2021, income tax expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 16.1% from approximately RMB30.5 million for the same
period in 2020 to approximately RMB35.4 million. The increase in
income tax expenses was mainly due to the increase in profit before
tax.

Profit for the year

Based on the reasons above, the net profit of the Group for 2021 was
approximately RMB110.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 4.1% as compared with approximately RMB105.8 million
for the same period in 2020. Net profit margin was 12.6%,
representing a decrease of 2.7% as compared with 15.3% for the
same period in 2020. The basic and diluted earnings per share of the
Company was BRMBO0.118 per share.
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Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As of 31 December 2021, trade and other receivables and
prepayments amounted to RMB449.6 million, representing an increase
of 149.8% from RMB180.0 million as of 31 December 2020, which
was primarily attributable to the increase of trade receivables and
business expansion during the Reporting Period.

Trade and other payables

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB249.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB42.3 million or 20.4% from approximately
RMB207.3 million as of 31 December 2020. The increase was mainly
due to the growth of the Group’s business scale and the increase in
subcontracting services to independent third-party service providers
resulting from the increase in GFA under management.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group pursues a prudent treasury management policy, actively
manages its liquidity position and have sufficient standby bank credit
facilities to cope with daily operation and any demands for capital for
future development. Also, the Group actively reviews and manages its
capital structure on a regular basis to maintain the advantages and
security of a strong capital position and adjust the capital structure in
response to changes in economic conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s principal sources
of liquidity came from the proceeds from our business operations and
a portion of the proceeds from the global offering of the Company on
15 July 2021 (the “Global Offering”). The Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and restricted funds amounted to approximately RMB750.8
milion as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
RMB521.3 million or 227.1% from RMB229.5 milion as at 31
December 2020.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was 3.2 times (831 December 2020: 1.2
times). The increase in current ratio was mainly due to the proceeds
received from the Global Offering and the increase in trade and other
receivables and prepayments. As of 31 December 2021, the Group did
not have any borrowings from banks or other financial institutions and
the gearing ratio (total borrowings divided by total equity) was nil (31
December 2020: nil). As of 31 December 2021, the Group did not
have any unused facilities from banks and other financial institutions (31
December 2020: nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group’s assets, revenues and expenditures are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), except for cash and cash
equivalents and restricted funds denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(*"HKD”) and in United States dollars (“USD”). No other significant
assets, revenues and expenditures are denominated in other
currencies. Save as aforesaid, the Group did not have any other
material direct exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations for the year
ended 31 December 2021. As of 31 December 2021, the Group has
not entered into agreements or procurement instruments to hedge the
exchange rate risk of the Group. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
exchange rates and will consider hedging arrangements for significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any capital
commitments that were contracted but not provided.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2021, the Company, its subsidiaries and
associates did not have any financial guarantees, mortgage nor
guarantees for loans, nor other significant contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Apart from restricted cash amounting to RMB250,851,000, the Group
did not pledge any of its assets as of 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any significant
investments (any investments with a fair value of 5% or more of its
total assets) and there were no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures by the Group.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group intends to utilise part of the net proceeds raised from the
listing to acquire or invest in other property management companies as
part of our strategies to expand our business scale and market share.
As of the date of this annual report, the Group did not have any other
future plans for material investments or acquisition of capital assets.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 2,908 employees
(31 December 2020: 3,054 employees). The Group has adopted a
system of determining the remuneration of employees based on their
performance. We offer employees competitive remuneration packages
that include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based
payments and year-end bonuses. The Group also contributes to social
security insurance for its employees, including medical insurance,
work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity insurance,
unemployment insurance and housing provident funds. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the total employee salaries and benefit
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately RMB273.4 million
(81 December 2020: RMB195.7 million).

We also focus on improving the skills of our employees by providing
them with continuous and systematic training based on their positions
and strengths so as to enhance their future expertise in property
management and related areas. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
provided approximately 8,913 classroom training and professional
lectures to its employees, and the total number of training participants
was approximately 47,736.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 21 December 2021, the Group entered into a framework
agreement to acquire the 39.2% equity interest in a third party
company, Hangzhou Kaichuan investment management Co.,Ltd
(‘Hanzhou Kaichuan”), at a consideration of RMB5,880,000. The
Group has prepaid all of the consideration in December 2021. Up to
the date of this report, the transactions has been completed. Upon the
completion of the acquisition, Hangzhou Kaichuan will become a joint
venture of the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREEEREHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Yiping (88— ), aged 55, was appointed as our Director on
22 October 2020 and was re-designated as our executive Director and
appointed as the chairman of our Board on 31 December 2020. He is
responsible for the overall operational management of business
development and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Hu served as
executive director of Shengquan Property from March 2004 to
December 2004 and consecutively served as the executive director, the
chairman of the board and the director from April 2013 to September
2020, primarily responsible for its major business decisions.

Mr. Hu has over 25 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry
and property management. From January 1987 to August 1995,
Mr. Hu worked at Deging County Construction Surveying Design Studio
(=5 SR LR, a PRC government authority responsible for
planning of urban and rural development and construction, where he
consecutively served as a technician for the survey and design office,
the assistant engineer and the engineer mainly responsible for design
work. He established Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. ({25 EEE
BB 7] (formerly known as Zhejiang Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (4T
TEEEEAER2AA]) and Deging County Real Estate Co., Ltd (12/5 %
REEBEXAMR AT in September 1995 and has been the director and
chairman of the board of directors of since then, mainly responsible for
its overall development, investment strategies and major business
decisions. He has been an executive director and the chairman of the
board of Dexin China since August 2018, primarily responsible for its
overall development, investment strategies and major business
decisions.

Mr. Hu graduated from Zhejiang School of Construction (/T & EET
#ER) in the PRC in January 1987 with a diploma’s degree in civil
engineering specialty, and from Zhejiang Yucai Workers’ University (77
IEA BT KE) in the PRC in June 1995 with an associate’s degree
in architecture. He obtained his bachelor’'s degree in financial
management (online course) from Tianjin University (KEZKE) in the
PRC in 2013 and obtained his executive master of business
administration (EMBA) from Xiamen University (EF9X2) in the PRC in
September 2018. He obtained a qualification for senior economist (&
R 4< 7 ED) issued by Zhejiang Human Resources and Social Security
Department (#/TE AN EFRMIEEIREEEE) in December 2007. He also
obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Huzhou Personnel
Department (1T AZEB) in September 1996. Currently, Mr. Hu is the
president of Zhejiang Real Estate Industry Association (T4 &= i E
) and the chairman of Huzhou Chamber of Commerce in Hangzhou

(RN T8N B ).
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Mr. Tang Junjie (JE{&{E), aged 47, was appointed as our Director on
22 October 2020 and was re-designated as our executive Director and
appointed as our president on 31 December 2020. He is responsible
for the formulation and implementation of the business strategy, annual
operation planning and financial planning of our Group. Mr. Tang joined
our Group as the chairman of the board and general manager of
Shengquan Property in November 2018 where he was primarily
responsible for the formulation and implementation of the business
strategy, annual operation and financial planning.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Tang worked at Wenzhou Planning
Bureau of Zhejiang Province (#T&BMMEEIB) (now known as
Wenzhou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau (& /N B %R &R
#2281/®)), where he served various positions from August 1996 to
January 2013, the deputy division chief of the municipal office,
primarily responsible for urban comprehensive transportation system,
urban planning and engineering approval, and the deputy
director-general of Longwan Branch, where he was mainly responsible
for detailed planning of the city and construction engineering approval.
From January 2013 to March 2018, he worked at Wenzhou High and
New Technology Industrial Development Zone (&M T = ¥ B lT &= ¥ 5
#%[@), where he consecutively served as the deputy director and the
director of the land planning office at the Management Committee of
the Science and Technology Park of Wenzhou High-Tech Zone (&M
SHEREEEZE®), where he was mainly responsible for land use
planning and management and urban management; the division chief at
the Industrial Planning Division of Wenzhou High-Tech Zone (&M S
FREEMEIE), where he was mainly responsible for strategic
planning of the management committee and investment and operation
of the high-tech industries; the director-general of the Planning and
Construction of Wenzhou South Zhejiang Science and Technology City
CBINTE R AR 812 5% /B), where he was mainly responsible for
land development and utilization, spatial planning, implementation and
management of the construction projects. From March 2018 to
October 2020, he worked at Dexin Holdings as assistant to the
chairman of the board, where he was mainly responsible for strategic
investment and operation of the property management sector.
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Mr. Tang obtained his bachelor's degree in civil engineering and
architectural engineering from Zhejiang University (#1/TAZ) in the PRC
in July 1996. He obtained his master’s degree in public administration
from Tongji University (EEAZ}) in the PRC in November 2005.
Mr. Tang was awarded as the “2019 Top 100 China Property
Manager” (20197 BI#) %4832 A100 38) in 2019 and “2020 Top 50
China Property Manager Election of the Yangtze River Delta Region (the
Fourth)” (2020(% M1 fE)H Bl ¥ ¥ &858 A 3132 K = /45038) in December
2020. Mr. Tang obtained a qualification for Engineer of Urban Planning
(T $8 E) TH2AM) issued by Wenzhou Engineering Technician Position
Second Review Committee (RIMNT TREEMAERKEE —FELE D)
in November 2001. Mr. Tang obtained a qualification for Registered
Urban Planner (55 M 48 £167) issued by MOHURD in January 2014.

Ms. Zhu Xiaoli ((kEEF), aged 45, was appointed as our Director on
22 October 2020 and was re-designated as our executive Director on
31 December 2020. She has also appointed as chief financial officer of
the Company on 1 October 2021. She is responsible for the overall
supervision and management of financial affairs of our Group. Ms. Zhu
joined our Group in August 2016 as the financial director and assistant
to the general manager of Shengquan Property, where she was
primarily responsible for the overall supervision and management of
financial affairs.

Ms. Zhu has over 18 years of experience in auditing and financing.
Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to April 2005 and from May
2005 to November 2011, she worked consecutively at Zhejiang
Wenhua Auction Co., Ltd. (T XEHEHRMR A F]), an auction
company, and Zhejiang Wenhua Holding Co., Ltd. (41T 3 EFRE AR
A ®]), an asset management company, where she served as financial
manager mainly responsible for the overall management of the
accounting department. From December 2011 to May 2014, she
worked at Zhong’an Group Co., Ltd. (REZEE B R A R]), a company
principally engaged in real estate development, hotel and restaurant
management and investment consulting, where she worked as the
financial and audit supervisor of audit department mainly responsible
for the overall auditing of the company and its subsidiaries, inspection
and supervision of execution of the financial regulations. From June
2014 to August 2016, she worked at Dexin Holdings as the audit
manager, where she was mainly responsible for assisting person in
charge of the audit risk control center with auditing system, auditing
process and annual auditing plan.

Ms. Zhu obtained her bachelor’'s degree in economics from Zhejiang
Academy of Finance & Economics (#T/TEBf4£&B%) (now known as
Zhejiang University of Finance & Economics (#TTEIAZ KX £2)) in the PRC
in July 1999. Ms. Zhu obtained her bachelor’'s degree in civil
engineering (engineering management) from Zhejiang University (#7/TA
&) in the PRC through distance learning in February, 2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jia Shenghua (E 4 %), aged 60, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

Mr. Jia served as a lecturer from July 1989 to July 1991 and as an
associate professor from September 1991 to February 1995 at School
of Economics and Management of Northwest Agricultural University (78
1623 KE), where he was primarily engaged in teaching and research
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of land economic management. From March 1995 to November 1996,
he worked as an associate professor at School of Business
Administration of Zhejiang University (#1)TKXZ) and has been a
professor since December 1996 and tutor of doctoral students since
December 1999.

B TERBES  BEXEREUAT LETAF
B EETB Y IFNITEERE -

In addition to the working experience above, Mr. Jia has been serving
as independent director or independent non-executive director of the
following listed companies:

Period of service Name of company Principal business, place of Position(s)
listing and stock code
R EHA AT EE EEER - L BB KR Bk ik

Greentown China
Holdings Limited (4% %
R EER AR AR

Since June 2006 A real estate company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock

Exchange (stock code: 3900)

Independent non-executive
director, a member of the
remuneration committee
and the nomination
committee, and the
chairman of the
remuneration committee

112006486 A 12 GEARERERAT —FRBIAEIRETOENE  BuNSTES #HZaE
27 (B4H 3% - 3900) RIZREE S B U R H B
ZEEIE

Since May 2015 A real estate company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock

code: 002244)

Hangzhou Binjiang Real Independent director
Estate Group Co., Ltd.

(LR 2 S

BB AT
B201545 A #E MNBIEEEERGE —FXRFRNEERSZMETHNE BIESE
BRAHA HERQ ] (BHRE  002244)

Since December 2018 Nacity Property Service

Group Co., Ltd. (R &P

A property management company
listed on the Shanghai Stock

Independent director

MERBEERMD AR Exchange (stock code: 603506)
~NAl)

B20184F 12 A #E MEVERBSEBRYD —FIPRESEHAXZMETHVE BIUES
BRAR] ERNAAE (FHMR : 603506)
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Mr. Jia obtained his bachelor’'s degree in agricultural economics and
management from the Northwest A&F University (Fadb 2 E8T) in the
PRC in July 19883. He obtained his doctor’s degree through successive
postgraduate and doctoral program in agricultural economics and
management from the Northwest Agricultural University (Falk 2 2 K 22)
in the PRC in July 1989. He has been a director of Zhejiang University
Property Research Center (#T/T K2 FE HE 7T+ L) since December
2000. Mr. Jia was a director and shareholder of Anji Zhejiang
University Young Professor Science and Technology Pioneer Park Co.,
Ltd. (ZEMATFHER A ZE BB A F]) whose business license
was revoked on 27 December 2013. He confirmed that, to the best of
his knowledge and belief, as of the date of this annual report, no
claims had been made against him and he was not aware of any
threatened or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the revocation of the
above company.

Mr. Rui Meng (A 8f), aged 54, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group. He has been a Professor in Accounting since January
2012 and a Parkland Chair in Finance (I E 4 BAZEHFHUIR) since
March 2019 at China Europe International Business School (A BX B EX
T EBR). From October 2015 to October 2019, he served as the
Zhongkun Group Chair in Finance (9354 [E ¢ B 22 & #1%) at China
Europe International Business School.
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In addition to the working experience above, Mr. Rui served or has
been serving as independent director or independent non-executive

director of the following listed companies:

G
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ESREREEBEREHT

Bk bt TYRERESH -
TMARBYESFHELIFNITESR

NEAGEHRENUNT L

Period of service

G35 & 58

Name of company

A4

Principal business, place of listing and
stock code

TERE LhRRG AN

Position(s)

B

From November 2014 to
May 2020

201411 A&
2020%5A

From September 2015 to
September 2018

2015F9 8 &
20189 A

From June 2015 to June
2021

201556 A%
202156 /1

Since April 2017

B2017F4 A1

Since August 2017

B2017F8 A

Since May 2018

BH2018F5A 12

Since May 2019

B2019F5 A

Since June 2021

B2021F6 A

Shanghai Winner Information
Technology Co., Inc. (L8

EARBRNAERDF)
LBEARERR
BRAF

Midea Group Co., Ltd. (EM%E

B BRAR)
FNEERNERAT

COSCO Shipping Energy

Transportation Co., Ltd. (%
EERRRNERAT)

RRBERRRD
BRAF

Shang Gong Group Co., Ltd.
(FT8E (RE)RHBERD

)
LT88 (RE) KD
BRAF

China Education Group

Holdings Limited (F Bl &

SEEZERARDA)
PEHEREER
BRRA

Country Garden Services

Holdings Company Limited
(BEEREZERERD )

ZEERBERERAA

Landsea Green Group Co, Ltd.

(HEHnesEERATF)
PRGeEBERAR
Sichuan Languang Justbon

Services Group Co., Ltd

m)IE R E R EERD
BRAF

A technological company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300609)

—FRRIFESFR S EHRRR A E (F
%85 : 300609)

A technological company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000333)

—ZERANBELRR S EHOREERE (F
# R : 000333)

An energy company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1138)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600026)

—ZRBR A ER(ROR : 1138) R L&
EHRX P (EH
8 : 600026) LT #8LIR 1 A)

A machinery company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600843)

—FREEBEXSFHETHOEEAR (B
5 : 600843)

An education company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 839)

—RRERAERETRHEEE (RHOK
5% : 839)

A property management company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6098)

—FRERAER EMAMEER LA (RH
9% : 6098)

A real estate company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 106)

—RRBXAER ETREE
Al (BB R 106)

A property management company listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2606). Delisted on 20 August 2021

—KRERXFMER EMEAMEER
R (B K55 : 2606) °
7202148 A20 B BUE L iz

Independent director and the
chairman of the audit committee

BUESEREANZEETIR

Independent director

BUES

Independent director and a member
of the audit committee

BUBEREHZEGKE

Independent director

BUEZ

Independent non- executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFRTESRENZECLR

Independent non- executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFRTESREAZECER

Independent non- executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFRTESRENZECEIR

Independent non-executive director

BUFRTES
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Notwithstanding Mr. Rui’s engagement as an independent
non-executive director of four companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
as advised and confirmed by Mr. Rui, he has sufficient time to act as
an independent non-executive Director based on the following:

(i) Other than serving as Professor in Accounting at China Europe
International Business School, Mr. Rui has not taken up any full
time employment in any capacity except serving as an
independent non-executive director in the above listed companies.
With his background and experience, Mr. Rui is fully aware of the
responsibilities and expected time involvements for serving as
independent non-executive director. He has not found difficulties
in devoting and managing his time to these companies and he is
confident that with his experience in being responsible for multiple
roles, he will be able to discharge his duties to our Company;
and

(i) Mr. Rui’s role in our Group is non-executive in nature and he will
not be involved in the daily management of our Group’s business,
thus his engagement as an independent non-executive Director
will not require his full-time participation.

Based on the foregoing, our Directors do not have reasons to believe
that the various positions currently held by Mr. Rui will result in Mr. Rui
not having sufficient time to act as an independent non-executive
Director or not properly discharging his fiduciary duties as a director of
our Company.

Mr. Rui obtained his bachelor’s degree in international economics from
the Institute of International Relations in Beijing (B BIBX T & 2257) in
the PRC in July 1990. He received a master of science in economics
from Oklahoma State University in the United States as well as a
master of business administration degree and a doctor of philosophy
degree in business administration from the University of Houston in the
United States in May 1993, December 1996 and August 1997,
respectively. Mr. Rui has been professional designated as a Certified
Financial Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and
Research since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the
Global Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010.

Mr. Yang Xi (#5EE), aged 41, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management of
our Group.
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From February 2008 to January 2015, he worked at Beijing Yisheng
Leju Information Services Ltd. (dt RIaELEE BEREBR A F]), a real
estate online to offline service provider and a company listed on New
York Stock Exchange (stock code: LEJU), where he served as
editor-in-chief mainly responsible for publication editing of the websites.
From January 2015 to February 2019, he worked at Shanghai Weimi
Business Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (b8 KRS 1E B A AE R
‘A7\]), a company primarily engaged in business information consulting,
where he served as the chief operating officer mainly responsible for
operation and management of the company. Since February 2019, he
has been working at Beijing Zhongwuyanxie Information Technology
Co., Ltd. GtmF¥ifiniE SR EAR2AR), a company primarily
engaged in information technology, where he served as the general
manager mainly responsible for management of the company.

Mr. Yang obtained his bachelor’'s degree of arts from Beijing
Technology and Business University (1t /= TEAZ) in the PRC in June
2001. Mr. Yang has been serving as the deputy secretary general of
China Property Management Institute (FEI¥IZEEHE) since July
2019. Mr. Yang was a supervisor and shareholder of Beijing Tianlun
Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. (it R X fmEHEL 42 ER A 7)) whose
business license was revoked on 30 December 2008. He confirmed
that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, as of the date of this
annual report, no claims had been made against him and he was not
aware of any threatened or potential claims made against him and
there are no outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the
revocation of the above company.

Each of our Directors has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his/her appointment as a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of our shareholders and there was no other information
relating to his/her appointment which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our executive Directors and other members of our senior management
are responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of the
business of our Group. For the biographical details of our executive
Directors, please refer to “Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. Liu Yibing (2l £), aged 44, was appointed as our executive
vice president in June 2015 and is primarily responsible for the
operation and management of the investment development center and
enterprise business department of our Group and overseeing our
operations in Zhejiang district. He joined our Group as the manager of
the marketing department of Shengquan Property in March 2006,
primarily responsible for management of the marketing department.
Mr. Liu has over 14 years of experience in property management. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Liu worked at Hangzhou Lvheng Property
Management Co., Ltd. (MM EWEERER A F]), a property
management company.

In addition, Mr. Liu served in several subsidiaries of our Group. From
March 2006 to June 2015, he consecutively served as manager of the
marketing department, regional manager of Hangzhou district, manager
and vice general manager of Shengquan Property and as its executive
deputy general manager since June 2015. Since June 2015, he also
serves as the director and general manager of Zhejiang Shengquan
Security Services Co., Ltd. (MIEEREZREAR A A]). Besides,
Mr. Liu has been serving as the person in charge of several branch
offices of Shengquan Property since October 2013, where he is mainly
responsible for the overall operation. Mr. Liu obtained his associate’s
degree in tourism management from West Anhui University (Bt 78 2263)
in the PRC in July 1999.

Mr. Chen Xin (PREF), aged 39, was appointed as an assistant to the
president in July 2018 and is primarily responsible for brand building,
business development and management of value-added services sector
of our Group. He joined our Group in October 2013 as the planning
manager, general manager of the third business department and
assistant to general manager of Shengquan Property, primarily
responsible for the project named “Shengquan Youijia” (B 2@ %), for
building smart community platform and expanding the community
business cooperation.
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Prior to joining our Group, from July 2005 to April 2010, he worked at
Hangzhou Dukuai Newsreader Media Co., Ltd. (il #FR:E#HR AEEE
R~ 7A]) (formally known as Hangzhou Newsreader Advertising Media
Co., Ltd. (MMERAESBEEHEBMRAF]) and Hangzhou Newsreader
E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (FUNERAEFEEERRF]), a company
principally engaged in commercial operation, where he served as an
account manager mainly responsible for planning and organization of
reader activities. From May 2010 to March 2011, he worked at
Zhejiang Transportation Travel Media Co., Ltd. (HT/T 2@ ik B2 (E AR
‘A1d]), a company principally engaged in media events planning, where
he served as a planning manager of the planning department mainly
responsible for advertisement design and marketing plan. From
November 2011 to September 2013, he worked at Hangzhou
HONYAR Electrical Co., Ltd. (fT/N&fEE & HER A F]), an architectural
electric products manufacturing enterprise, where he served as the
manager of the public relations department mainly responsible for brand
building, corporate culture promotion and media relationship
maintenance.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’s degree in arts from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University (/82238 K2 in the PRC in July 2005.

Ms. Kan Qian (Eif&), aged 29, was appointed as the assistant to our
president and general manager of Central China district in July 2020
and is primarily responsible for assisting with our president in handling
daily affairs of our Group and overseeing our operations in Central
China district. She joined our Group in July 2020 as the assistant to
the chairman of the board of Shengquan Property and general
manager of Central China district, primarily responsible for assisting
with daily affairs of the chairman of the board of directors.

Prior to joining our Group, from July 2018 to July 2020, Ms. Kan
worked at Dexin Holdings as a secretary to the chairman of the board
where she was mainly responsible for assisting with chairman on
handling daily affairs and administration affairs.

Ms. Kan obtained her bachelor’s degree in financial management from
Wuhan Bioengineering Institute (H/24£ %) T2ZF3) in the PRC in June
2016. She obtained the master of science degree in marketing from
the Queen’s University of Belfast in the United Kingdom in July 2018.
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Ms. Zhao Lixiang (#HEEi#l), aged 43, was appointed as our chief
human resources and administration officer in June 2013 and is
primarily responsible for the management of human resources and
administration affairs, construction of enterprise culture and
development of human resources service system of our Group.

Ms. Zhao has over 21 years of experience in human resources and
administration management. Prior to joining our Group, from January
2000 to December 2003, she worked at Huasheng Construction Group
Co., Ltd. (FEFAZHZEBEAR A A]), a company principally engaged in
construction, where she served as the manager of the overseas
business department mainly responsible for daily management of
human resources. From January 2004 to July 2006, she worked at
Zhejiang Jinke Daily Chemical Co., Ltd. (/T & &I B REE AR A7),
where she served as human resources manager mainly responsible for
improvement of human resources policies and procedures and other
daily affairs of human resources. From July 2006 to June 2010, she
worked at Shaoxing Shangyu Jinjin Hotel Co., Ltd. (438 FE &K
EIEB MR AT, where she served as the head of general manager
office mainly responsible for the daily affairs of the general manager
office. From July 2010 to September 2011, she served as the manager
of administration and human resources department at Zhejiang Geshan
Pinyue Travel Co., Ltd. (MIHILMIIKERR A F]) (formally known as
Zhejiang Geshan Pinyue Hotel Co., Ltd. (T3l il A BEIE SR A
A])), where she was mainly responsible for the daily management of
human resources and administration affairs. From October 2011 to July
2012 and from August 2012 to June 2013, she successively served as
the human resources and administration director at Zhejiang Shimao
Junlan Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (Tt ZZE HEEEE B R A7)
and Zhejiang Denghao Hotel Co., Ltd. GiT/L& = B/E AR A7),
respectively, where she was mainly responsible for the daily
management of human resources and administration affairs.

Ms. Zhao obtained her bachelor’'s degree in business management
from Nankai University (F8# A2 in the PRC through distance learning
in July 2018. She obtained the human resources management division
(Level 1) (¥ ANEREE AB—#) issued by the Occupational Skill
Testing Authority of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security (A1TE R EREBEERELETEH D) in November 2015.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty (Efifil{#), was appointed as our company
secretary on 31 May 2021. Ms. So currently serves as a vice president
of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a corporate
service provider. She has over 20 years of experience in the field of
company secretary. Ms. So obtained a master’'s degree in Chinese and
Comparative Law from the City University of Hong Kong in 2004 and a
master's degree in business administration from the University of
Leicester (long distance learning course) in 1999. Ms. So is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom since
1997.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has three business lines, namely (i) property management
services, (i) value-added services to non-property owners and (i)
community value-added services, forming an integrated service offering
to its customers that cover the entire value chain of property
management.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the state of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 86 to 90.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HKDO0.059 per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Final Dividend”),
amounting to a total of approximately HKD59,994,000 which is
expected to be distributed on or before 29 July 2022 to Shareholders.
The payment of the Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 6 July 2022
(the “2021 AGM").

There was no interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June
2021. The dividend payable was not reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movement in reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders are set out
in Note 32 of the consolidated financial statements on page 153 of this
annual report. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement, as well as the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 7 to 10 and pages 11 to 23, respectively, of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD” in this annual report, the Group has no
significant events after the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that high-quality employees who value its corporate
culture are essential elements to promote the Group’s sustainable
growth. The Group intends to attract and retain skilled and talented
employees from reputable universities of PRC through various
initiatives, including its creative trainee programs, competitive
compensation packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument
policy of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Directors’
Report — Employees and Remuneration Policy”.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s
businesses. We reinforce business partnerships with suppliers by
conducting ongoing communication in a proactive and effective
manner.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

Customers’ satisfaction with our services and products has a profound
effect on our profitability. Our dedicated sales team is in constant
communication with our customers and potential customers to uncover
and create customer needs and help customers make informed
decisions. Identification of customers’ pain points alongside grasping
the market trend are critical for the Group to timely adjust the Group’s
operating strategies to match the market requirements. For details
regarding the Group’s major customers, please refer to the sections
headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks and uncertainties which the Group faces include (i) its
future growth may not materialize as planned; (i) uncertainty as to
securing new or renewing the existing property management service
agreements on favourable terms, or at all; (i) uncertainty related to
acquisitions which may not be successful and the Group may face
difficulties in integrating acquired operations with its existing operations;
(iv) no control over a majority of revenue generate from connected
persons of the Company; (v) risks related to development in the
government policies and regulations regarding the PRC property
management services; and (vi) risks related to the increasing raw
material prices and labor costs.

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
financial risks of the Group is mainly foreign exchange rate risk. As
substantial portion of the Group’s businesses are conducted in the
PRC and denominated in RMB. Foreign currency transaction included
mainly receipts of proceeds from the Listing and payment of
professional fees which are denominated in HKD and USD. As at 31
December 2021, major non-BRMB assets are cash and cash
equivalents denominated in HKD in the corresponding amount of
RMB25.9 million and cash and cash equivalents denominated in USD
in the corresponding amount of RMBO0.8 million. Fluctuation of the
exchange rates of RMB against foreign currency could affect the
Group’s results of operations. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy, and manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of foreign currency rate. The
Group will make foreign exchange hedging arrangements when
necessary.
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These financial risks, and the related risk management policies and
practices used by the Group are discussed in note 6 headed “Financial
Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock Exchange
since the Listing Date. During the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2021, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming 2021 AGM will be held on Wednesday, 6 July 2022
and its notice and all other relevant documents will be published and
despatched to the Shareholders in June 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to attend and vote at the 2021
AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 30 June 2022 to Wednesday, 6 July 2022, both days
inclusive and during which no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2021 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on Wednesday, 29 June 2022.
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(b) For determining the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 18 July 2022 to Tuesday, 19 July 2022 (both days
inclusive), during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to be eligible for the proposed final
dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should
ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 July 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

It is the Group’s corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group
strives to minimize its environmental impact and comply with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations. The Group has
implemented reasonable measures in the operation of its businesses to
comply with all applicable requirements. Given the nature of the
Group’s operations, it is believed that the Group is not subject to
material environmental liability risk or compliance costs.

The measures the Group took to ensure compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations include: (i) formulating
and improving management measures and operational guidelines for
energy conservation, emission reduction and waste management; and
(i) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment and designs.

The Group had not received any material fines or penalties associated
with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group
shall be published separately and will be posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.dexinfuwu.com).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, nor restrictions against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since the Listing Date.

Net proceeds from the initial public offering (after the full exercise of
the over-allotment option) received by the Company were
approximately HK$694.6 million with 1,000,000,000 new ordinary
Shares issued. On 15 July 2021, the Company also received net
proceeds of HK$763.5 million with 16,851,000 ordinary Shares issued
from the full exercise of Over-allotment Option.

The following table sets forth the status of use of net proceeds from
the Company’s initial public offering as of 31 December 2021 together
with the expected timeline of use:
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Actual use of net
proceeds during
the period from
the Listing Date

Expected timeline
for usage of
proceeds

total amount of Amount of net  to 31 December Proceeds (which is subject
net proceeds proceeds 2021 unused to adjustment)
IHEHER
2021F12A318
ERERETE FRRE  LHEAERE FRREREEY
Purpose BH BENEL FEeH BEEBRE ABRRSRE BER(THERE)
(approx.) HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
(BE49) BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL
1. Expand our business scale and 1. BAEMOEBHRER 65% 496.0 19.2 476.8 By December 2024
market share through multiple BRLEERRTANE 2024512 A7
channels
2. Diversify and expand our senice 2. it RERER FERE 10% 76.4 0.0 76.4 By December 2024
offerings Em 7202412 Al
3. Invest in information technologies 3. & {z BRMAMB I 10% 76.4 1.6 748 By December 2024
and our internal management ABEBZS UK E 1202412 A 31
system(s) to improve service quality BBLZENEFER
and customer experience
4. Improve human resource 4, TEANNBREBWIRES 5% 383 3.0 35.3 By December 2024
management and enhance =3¢ld 1202412 A
corporate culture
5. Working capital and other general 5. £€B&&REM—K AR 10% 76.4 6.9 69.5 By December 2024
corporate purposes B 72024412 A
Total Bt 100% 763.5 307 732.8 By December 2024
2024512 Al

Note: The sum of the data may not add up to the total due to rounding.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Hu Yiping

Mr. Tang Junjie

Ms. Zhu Xiaoli

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Jia Shenghua

Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Yang Xi

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are

set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year.
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TERMS OF OFFICE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group that is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given
by the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other payments have been
made or are payable by the Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the
controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), namely Mr. Hu Yiping and Shengfu International
Limited, entered into the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company on 22 June 2021 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of
the Group, and details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in
the sub-section headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation
to the Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the
Deed of Non- competition (the “Undertakings”) during the Reporting
Period. Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the same as part of the annual review process. In determining whether
the Controlling Shareholder had fully complied with the Undertakings in
the Reporting Period for the annual assessment, the independent non-
executive Directors noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders
declared that they had fully complied with the Undertakings in the
Reporting Period; (b) no new competing business was reported by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Reporting Period; and (c) there was
no particular situation rendering the full compliance of the Undertakings
being questionable. In view of the above, the independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that, as far as they are aware, the
Controlling Shareholders had complied with all the Undertakings in the
Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had not
entered into any equity-linked agreements.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceedings during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not made
any loans or provided any guarantee for loans, directly or indirectly, to
the senior management of the Company, the Directors, the controlling
shareholders or their respective associates.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of Directors
or chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
(i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interest in Shares of the Company

EFRERITRAENREFQATRA
HENEZBE IR 6 - RS RIEE
RE B A R i

R2021F 128318 » ARRIEBREEITHA
BERARTIREAMEEEZE(EERBFHFR
HAE B EXVED) RBR D « MR (D sk & &
RHEA()VREESF LSRN EXVEET RS
BN AR BRI EDS AR (B
BRI 5 R H B G0 8 B IS & 1ESkA8 A
BERERSORR) (i) RIEBHF LS EDSE
3521GBR AR R A GFEME L MA TS RKX
2 k(i) iRE LT AR BIBT SR RIS E R TT A
ERHETESFRHHZESTR ([EESpR ) A
MEARARNE RBRFTMERERBEWT

() REIFIGBER

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest interested™ interest
EEEE HEnE BEESNEBEEY BHERE L
Mr. Hu Yiping (“Mr. Hu”) Interest in controlled corporation® 529,202,279 (L) 52.04%

t—F AL ([HAKkED T EE R @
Interest of spouse®

P @

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

2) Shengfu International is owned as to 91.6% by Mr. Hu and 8.4% by Ms. Wei
Peifen (“Ms. Wei”), the spouse of Mr. Hu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu and
Ms. Wei are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shengfu
International.
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EERREE
(i) Interest in associated corporation of the (i) NEATEBEBE#ER
Company
Number of Approximate

Name of associated shares percentage of

Name of Director  corporation Nature of interest interested™ interest
MBEERDN
EEEE tHEEE B S BREBE" #BMOERESL
Mr. Hu Shengfu International Beneficial owner 458 (L) 91.6%
HAE & R & B B BEnEAA
Note: BifsE :
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the associated 1) FRILIRTZATREEEBRMDE TR
corporation.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the br EXFTIREEE SN - IBEEMA - NAREF
Directors, as at the date of this annual report, none of the WA AARESHETHRABRE
Directors or chief executives of the Company has any interests RARR S EAEEE (E&RESF LS
and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or %’ifbﬁ BIEXVER) BBk - ME AR (0 Sk &
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within BHES(VREESRAEGIIEXVEE
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be (j) 7&8’\* =R NN YR By i oK e = 1)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to R/ HAR (BIEREE #&Hﬂﬁﬂ%
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or BB BB1IE X E VES AR BB e ok
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under B) 0 ()R B AR AR IR B %&Eﬁ&é
such provisions of the SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by 1|7M§|J%352fl7k7(_§ﬂ’3 SR 2 &/‘JZ
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) notified KB (i) RIBRETFRAEMEARA
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the Model Code. aﬁé&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*&ﬁ&/im}a 0
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERFER IR RERK G 2 #x
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND B

UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at the Latest Practicable Date, the following corporations/persons

(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had
interests of 5% or more in the issued Shares of the Company

BARBEMNEZSAZRRITRABRMM  R&
BRERAITES  UTAL(RRRERHK
BITRABRIN RARBEHTROERR
158 5 R R R DI 5 3361k AL A IGFTIE &Y
B z5% M A ERE s

according to the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Number of Shares

Approximate
percentage of

sREE((&EED® BEaSBEAA

Name of corporation/person Nature of interest interested™ interest®
BAEERN

EE ANt &BE M :3nE 4= Mgz E @

Shengfu International Limited® Beneficial owner 529,202,279 (L) 52.04%

BREHEREERARO EnAA

Mr. Hu® Interested in controlled 529,202,279 (L) 52.04%
corporation

AL E® RErEER

Ms. Wei@ Interest of spouse 529,202,279 (L) 52.04%

Buzt+® Ao B e

Kaibang International Limited Beneficial owner 129,629,630 (L) 12.75%

I EBRER AT EnEA A

HONG KONG MEI LUN INT’L CO., Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.25%

LIMITED (“HK Mei Lun”)®

EREERBERBRAR([EEER)® BEREAA

Ms. Shen Yuehua (“Ms. Shen”)® Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.25%

MAZEL L ([T )H® EnEA A

Mr. Jin Liang (“Mr. Jin")® Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.25%
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(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

) Shengfu International is owned as to 91.6% by Mr. Hu and 8.4% by Ms. Wei, the
spouse of Mr. Hu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu and Ms. Wei are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Shengfu International.

()] HK Mei Lun is owned as to approximately 93.9% by Ms. Shen and 6.1% by Mr. Jin,
the spouse of Ms. Shen. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Shen and Mr. Jin are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by HK Mei Lun.

(4) Shareholding percentages in this table may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, no person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had registered an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 June 2021, the Company adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”), which falls within the ambit of, and is
subject to, the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge
the contributions that the eligible participants had or may have made to
the Group. The Directors consider that the Share Option Scheme, with
its broad basis of participation, will enable the Group to reward
employees, Directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to the Group. It is expected that the Share Option
Scheme will () motivate the eligible participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and
retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the day on which trading of the Shares
commences on the Stock Exchange, being 100,000,000 Shares, but
excluding any Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option.
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The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercise and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue for the time being.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from 15 July 2021 and the options granted have a 10-year exercise
period. The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to
compliance with the requirements under any applicable laws,
regulations or rules, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.

The subscription price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average official closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme nor were there outstanding
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

A summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme has been set out

in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV of the
Prospectus.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue derived from its top
five customers accounted for 27.8% of the Group’s total revenue and
the revenue amount from the Group’s single largest customer, Dexin
China Group, accounted for 25.8% of the Group’s total revenue.

Other than Dexin China Group, or their joint ventures or associates, the
Group’s customers during the year ended 31 December 2021 were all
independent third parties.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers. During the year ended 31
December 2021, none of the Group’s major customers was also one
of the Group’s five largest suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from its top five
suppliers accounted for 26.1% of the Group’s total purchase cost and
the purchases amount from the Group’s single largest supplier,
accounted for 111.9% of the Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Group’s major
suppliers was also one of the Group’s five largest customers and all of
the Group’s major suppliers were independent third parties.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders who,
to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 2,908 employees
(81 December 2020: 3,054 employees). The Group has adopted a
system of determining the remuneration of employees based on their
performance. We offer employees competitive remuneration packages
that include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based
payments and year-end bonuses. The Group also contributes to social
security insurance for its employees, including medical insurance,
work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity insurance,
unemployment insurance and housing provident funds. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the total employee salaries and benefit
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately RMB273.4 million
(81 December 2020: RMB195.7 million). We also focus on improving
the skills of our employees by providing them with continuous and
systematic training based on their positions and strengths so as to
enhance their future expertise in property management and related
areas. As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided approximately
8,913 classroom training and professional lectures to its employees,
and the total number of training participants was approximately
47,736.

The Group adopts a formal and transparent remuneration policy to
determine the remuneration packages of Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries as the Group believes that the
successful implementation of its growth and business strategies rests
on a team of experienced, motivated and well-trained managers and
employees at all levels.

° The Remuneration Committee is mandated to formulate the
Group’s remuneration policy for the Board’s approval, and to
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s annual
salary adjustment, the annual performance bonus and share
award.

° The objective of remunerating Directors is to ensure that there is
an appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain
experienced people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s
business and development. Their remuneration is reviewed
annually with reference to companies of comparable business or
scale, and any changes are subject to Shareholders’ approval.
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o Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to the
Group’s success. In terms of talent training, the Group will further
enhance its employee training program with internal and external
resources. The employee training programs primarily cover key
areas in the Group’s business operations, which provide
continuous training to its existing employees at different levels to
specialise and strengthen their skill sets.

° In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of
the Directors and senior management, the Group will take into
account salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.

° In general, the Group determines employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualification, position and seniority. As required by
relevant regulations, the Group is subject to social insurance
contribution plans or other pension schemes prescribed by the
local governments and is required to pay on behalf of its
employees, a monthly social insurance funds covering pension
fund, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and unemployment insurance, and the housing
provident fund, or to contribute regularly to mandatory provident
fund schemes on behalf of its employees.

The Company enters into labor contracts with all of its employees. The
Company offers its employees competitive remuneration packages that
include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based
payments and year-end bonuses. To incentivize its employees and
promote the long-term growth of the Company, the Company has
conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
sections headed “Director’s report — Share Option Scheme”.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not
experience any significant labour disputes or any difficulty in recruiting
employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in note
15 of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements include related party transactions disclosed under
accounting standards and related party transactions which also
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions in
respect of the remuneration of Directors and chief executives of the
Company constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, these transactions are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors believe the related party transactions set out in Note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements do not fall within the definition of
“connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (as the case may be). The Company
confirmed that it was in compliance with the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2021 or a waiver from such provisions has been obtained from the
Stock Exchange.

The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021 (where all such
continuing connected transactions required to be disclosed herein are
conducted in compliance with the Listing Rules) as follows:

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float of
an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that
at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times
be held by the public. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, “Related Party Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report, no contract of significance
was entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year and no
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31 December
2021 or subsisted at the end of the year.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(subject to Reporting, Annual Review and
Announcement Requirements)

1. Property Sales Assistance Services

On 3 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master property sales assistance
services agreement (the “Master Property Sales Assistance
Services Agreement”) with Dexin China (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which the Group agreed to,
through referral of potential buyers, provide sales assistance
services to Dexin Group in respect of the serviced apartments
developed or held by Dexin Group (the “Property Sales
Assistance Services”).

The initial term of the Master Property Sales Assistance Services
Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to 31 December
2023, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree,
subject to compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Property Sales Assistance
Services under the Master Property Sales Assistance Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB15.8
million.
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The annual cap in respect of the Master Property Sales
Assistance Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 and each of the two years ending 31 December 2023 is
RMB16.4 million, RMB17.2 million and RMB18.1 million,
respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of the
Property Sales Assistance Services under the Master Property
Sales Assistance Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2021 under the Master Property Sales
Assistance Services Agreement.

Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related
Services

On 3 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of our
subsidiaries) entered into a master commercial consulting services
agreement (the “Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting
and Related Services Agreement”) with Dexin China (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which our Group
agreed to provide Dexin Group with commercial consulting
services, including but not limited to market research and
analysis, tenant sourcing and management and opening
preparation services for commercial complexes developed and
owned by Dexin Group (the “Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting
and Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services under the Master Dexin China
Commercial Consulting and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB6.8 million.
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The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2021 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2023 is RMB6.8 million, RMB6.8 million and RMB6.8
million, respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of
the Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related Services
under the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 has
not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2021 under the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting and
Related Services Agreement.

Continuing Connected Transactions subject to the
Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular
and Independent Shareholders’ Approval
Requirements

1(a). Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services

On 3 May 2021, Shengquan Property (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) entered into a master property management and
related services agreement (the “Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement”) with Dexin
China (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to
which Shengquan Property agreed to provide Dexin Group with
property management and related services, including but not
limited to (i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services;
(i) management services for the sales offices and the display
units; (i) (@) house inspection; (b) pre-delivery cleaning services;
(c) pre-delivery preparation; and (d) repair and maintenance
services for house and auxiliary facilities after delivery; and (iv)
property management services (such as cleaning and security
services) for the properties developed and owned by Dexin
Group, including but not limited to the unsold residential property
units, car parking lots, office buildings and commercial properties
(the “Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Property Management
and Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.
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1(b).

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services under the Master Dexin China
Property Management and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB91.9 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2021 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2023 is RMB93.6 million, RMB99.2 million and
RMB108.4 million, respectively. Therefore, the amount received in
respect of the Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services under the Master Dexin China Property Management and
Related Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2021 under the Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement.

Mr. Hu Property Management and Related Services

On 28 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master property management and
related services agreement (the “Master Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services Agreement”) with Mr. Hu
(for and on behalf of the associates of Mr. Hu (excluding Dexin
Group but including the associates of Dexin China) (“Mr. Hu’s
Companies”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide Mr.
Hu’s Companies with property management and related services,
including but not limited to () preliminary planning and design
consultancy services; (i) management services for the sales
offices and the display units; (i) (a) house inspection; (b) pre-
delivery cleaning services; (c) pre-delivery preparation; and (d)
repair and maintenance services for house and auxiliary facilities
after delivery; and (iv) property management services (such as
cleaning and security services) for the properties developed and
owned by Mr. Hu’s Companies, including but not limited to the
unsold residential property units, car parking lots, office buildings
and commercial properties (the “Mr. Hu Property Management
and Related Services”).

The initial term of the Master Mr. Hu Property Management and
Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to
31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.
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2(a).

The amount received in respect of the Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services under the Master Mr. Hu
Property Management and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB40.6 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2021 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2023 is RMB40.6 milion, RMB43.1 million and
RMB47.2 million, respectively. Therefore, the amount received in
respect of the Mr. Hu Property Management and Related
Services under the Master Mr. Hu Property Management and
Related Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2021 under the Master Mr. Hu Property Management
and Related Services Agreement.

Dexin China Smart Community Solution Services

On 38 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our other subsidiaries) entered into a master smart community
solutions services agreement (the “Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement”) with Dexin China
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which our
Group agreed to provide Dexin Group with smart community
solutions with hardware and software that integrate, among other
things, visitor management, traffic control, carpark management,
security control, energy conservation and fire control capabilities
for properties developed by Dexin Group (the “Dexin China
Smart Community Solutions Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Smart Community
Solutions Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties
may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services under the Master Dexin China
Smart Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is RMB17 million.

2(a).
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2(b).

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021 and each of the two years ending 31 December
2023 is RMB17.7 million, RMB19.7 million and RMB20.6 million,
respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of the
Dexin China Smart Community Solutions Services under the
Master Dexin China Smart Community Solutions Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 has not
exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2021
under the Master Dexin China Smart Community Solutions
Services Agreement.

Mr. Hu Smart Community Solution Services

On 23 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our other subsidiaries) entered into a master smart community
solutions services agreement (the “Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement”) with Mr. Hu (for
and on behalf of the associates of Mr. Hu (excluding Dexin Group
but including the associates of Dexin China), pursuant to which
our Group agreed to provide Mr. Hu's Companies with smart
community solutions with hardware and software that integrate,
among other things, visitor management, traffic control, carpark
management, security control, energy conservation and fire
control capabilities for properties developed by Mr. Hu's
Companies (the “Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services”).

The initial term of the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to 31
December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Mr. Hu Smart Community
Solutions Services under the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community
Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 is RMB22.7 million.
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The annual cap in respect of the Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021 and each of the two years ending 31 December
20283 is RMB26.5 million, RMB26.7 million and RMB28.0 million,
respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of the Mr.
Hu Smart Community Solutions Services under the Master Mr. Hu
Smart Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 has not exceeded the annual cap for
the year ended 31 December 2021 under the Master Mr. Hu
Smart Community Solutions Services Agreement.

Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational
Services

On 23 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master serviced apartment
operational agreement (the “Master Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services Agreement’) with Dexin
Holdings (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to
which our Group agreed to provide Dexin Holdings and its
subsidiaries (“Dexin Holdings Group”) with serviced apartment
operational services, including but not limited to formulation of
marketing strategy, interior decoration designing services and
formulation of standardized management procedures for serviced
apartments developed by Dexin Holdings Group (the “Dexin
Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment
Operational Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties
may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services under the Master Dexin Holdings
Serviced Apartment Operational Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is RMB19.2 million.
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The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021 and each of the two years ending 31 December
2023 is RMB20.9 million, RMB22.0 million and RMB23.1 million,
respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of the
Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational Services under
the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 has
not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2021 under the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment
Operational Services Agreement.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors
Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-

executive Directors have reviewed the CCT Agreements, and confirmed
the transactions under the CCT Agreements have been entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The independent non-executive Directors further confirmed that the
annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions under
the CCT Agreements are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole, and that the transactions
were conducted in accordance with the pricing policies disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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Confirmations from the Company’s Independent
Auditor

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor (the “Auditor”) to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
confirmed that nothing has come to its attention in relation to the
above continuing connected transactions with regard to the matters set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been delivered by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in Note 38 of the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report, there are no important events after the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report which require
disclosure.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the
Articles of Association.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that
may be brought against the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as
its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 66 to 81 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26 April
2022, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 25 April 2022. The Group has appointed
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) as the new auditor of
the Company with effect from 26 April 2022, to hold office until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company to fill
the casual vacancy following PwC’s resignation. The financial
statements have been audited by Zhonghui Anda.

Zhonghui Anda shall retire in accordance with the Articles of

Association and a resolution for their appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the 2021 AGM.
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CHANGES IN THE BOARD AND THE
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors confirm that no information is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have any future plans for material investments as of
the date of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in all material aspects and have obtained all
applicable material licenses, approvals and permits from relevant
regulatory authorities. During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws
and regulations by the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Hu Yiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 May 2022
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The Group is committed to maintaining and strengthening high
standards of corporate governance by focusing on principles of
integrity, accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility and
fairness, in order to safeguard and protect the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability
system. The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices, and the Corporate Governance Code
has been applicable to the Company with effect from the Listing Date.

Throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code. The Board will continue to
review and monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose of
complying with the Code and maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company and is charged with promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has
general powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated by
the Board to the management of the Company, who will implement the
strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from
time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company. The
Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Company has also
adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the objective and
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.

During the period from the Listing Date up to the date of this annual

report, the Board comprises six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
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The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping

(Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chairman)
Mr. Tang Junjie (Executive Director and President)
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli (Executive Director and President Assistant)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jia Shenghua
Mr. Rui Meng
Mr. Yang Xi

No Board member has other relationship with the other Board
members of the Company.

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code states that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The chairman, Mr. Hu Yiping, focuses on the
overall management of the investment strategies and business
development of the Group. The executive Director and president, Mr.
Tang Junjie is responsible for day-to-day business and management of
the Group. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company on 21 June 2021, respectively and each of the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into their respective letters of appointment.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB1.5 million.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is
determined with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021 the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of
the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not
be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company has engaged Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty,
a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as the company
secretary.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. So has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company has
arranged a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business and
is fully aware of the director’s responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant statutory requirements. The Company will arrange
suitable training for all Directors in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as part of their continuous professional
development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors attended
the aforementioned comprehensive induction training and read the
relevant materials to keep themselves abreast of regulatory
developments and changes.

Code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that
board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of the majority
of the Directors, either in person or through electronic means of
communications.
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As the Company was only listed on 15 July 2021, the Board held two
meetings during the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December
2021 for reviewing and approving the unaudited interim results of the
Company together with its subsidiaries for the six months ended 30
June 2021 and approving change of Chief Financial Officer. The
Directors expects to convene at least four regular Board meetings in
each financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance
with code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

No general meeting was held from the Listing Date up to the date of
publication of this annual report. The table below sets out the details of
Board meetings attendance of each Director during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Attended/Eligible to attend
Board meeting

HE HBEHEEEETEH Y
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Hu Yiping [ R e 2/2
Mr. Tang Junjie BRI A 2/2
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli REEFR) 21 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITESE
Mr. Jia Shenghua BEELE 2/2
Mr. Rui Meng R R ST A 2/2
Mr. Yang Xi HER LA 2/2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS LEEQREEE
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the BEE @A ERETOEE AT ZTIIEXSE

code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
available on the website of the Company and that of the Stock
Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Jia Shenghua, Mr. Rui Meng and Mr. Yang Xi, all
of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Rui Meng has
been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr. Rui
Meng has the appropriate professional qualifications or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited
to (i) assisting the Board by providing an independent opinion on the
effectiveness of financial reporting process, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group; (i) overseeing the audit procedures
and performing other duties and responsibilities designated by the
Board.

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2021, 1
meeting of the Audit Committee was held and the attendance record of
the Audit Committee members is set out in the table below:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

HiE FEH B EERE
Directors BEE
Mr. Jia Shenghua BAELRE 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng W R ST 11
Mr. Yang Xi SRR & 1/1
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The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions)
and risk management systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function and processes and the reappointment of the external
auditor. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation given
by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed unaudited interim results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the six months ended 30 June
2021.

Nomination Committee

Pursuant to paragraph B.3 of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Group has established a
Nomination Committee with written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Hu Yiping, Mr. Jia
Shenghua and Mr. Rui Meng. Mr. Hu Yiping has been appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board; (i) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (i) making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of the Directors.

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2021, 1
meeting of the Nomination Committee were held and the attendance
record of the Nomination Committee members is set out in the table
below:
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy;
assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and made recommendation to the Board in relation to the re-election of
retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee has conducted an annual assessment of
the independence of each independent non-executive Director and
made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
and senior management of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph E.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, the Group has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee consists of
three members, namely Mr. Jia Shenghua, Mr. Tang Junjie and Mr. Rui
Meng. Mr. Jia Shenghua has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not
limited to (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy; (i) determining the specific terms of the
remuneration packages for all directors and senior management; and
(iii) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time.

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2021, 1
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held and the attendance
record of the Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table
below:
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Mr. Rui Meng ? RS 1/1
Mr. Tang Junjie BB A 11
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The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the service
agreement, appointment letter and remuneration policy for Directors
and senior management of the Company, and made recommendations
to the Board on the service agreement, appointment letter and
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. The provisions under the Listing Rules in relation
to compliance with the Model Code by the Directors regarding
securities transactions have been applicable to the Company since the
Listing Date. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2021.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedures to
nominate board candidates.

The Nomination Policy aims to nominate suitable candidates to the
Board. Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
shall identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation to
the Board, after assessing a number of factors of a candidate,
including, but not limited to, reputation for integrity, accomplishment
and experience, commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interests, independence of proposed independent non-executive
Directors and diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the final
decision in relation to its nomination of any candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, and recommend revision to the Board for consideration
and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, provided that the declaration and distribution of
dividends is not in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account, among other things, the
Group’s financial results, Shareholders’ interests; general business
conditions and strategies, financial condition, capital requirements,
taxation considerations, contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction
(if any), and any other conditions the Directors may deem relevant at
such time. Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
periods.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diversified Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of the Group’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of the
Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education
background, gender, age and ethnicity. In addition, members of the
Board has a balanced mix of experience including overall management,
brand enhancement, business development, legal, financial, audit and
accounting experience. The ages of the Directors range from 41 to 58
years old and their educational backgrounds range from civil
engineering, corporate management, public administration, financial
management, agricultural economics and management, international
economics to journalism and communication studies.
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The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with the aim of
achieving an appropriate level of diversity among Board members
according to the circumstances of the Group from time to time. In
summary, the Board Diversity Policy sets out that when considering the
nomination and appointment of a Director, with the assistance of the
Nomination Committee, the Board would consider a range of diversity
of perspectives, including but not limited to the professional
experience, skills, knowledge, education background, gender, age and
ethnicity, in order to better serve the needs and development of the
Company. All Board appointments will be based on merits and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board.

The Board currently has one female Director and as such has achieved
gender diversity in respect of the Board. We will strive to enhance
female representation and achieve an appropriate balance of gender
diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. We will also
ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to
senior level and we are committed to provide career development
opportunities for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to our Board in near
future.

The Company plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees
whom we consider to have the suitable experience, skills and
knowledge of our operation and business, including but not limited to,
business operation, management, accounting and finance, legal and
compliance and research and development.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF FEf = 4R E 1 JE Rk & Fir il
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the then applicable code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate 1R & B A M2 E AT BIEB. 1.5 BIE
Governance Code, the annual remuneration of members of the senior X @ HZE2021F12 A31HILEE @ SR EIEE

management (other than Directors) by band for the year ended 31 FKE (BERIN 2 EFHILAEREHIIMT ¢
December 2021 is set out below:

Number of
members of
senior
management
BRERERS
A&

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 3

EXTERNAL AUDITOR HhEB 1% B AT

The Company appointed Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as the external & ZE2021F 12 A31 B IFFE » KA R E(EFE
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2021, with effect from 25 ZIEETENEISFT AR A B¥EEIN L AZ SR -
April 2022 following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers. B2022F4 A25H # SR KB EHERER -

Details of the fees paid/payable in respect of the audit and non-audit TFXRHZ|EZE2021FE12 A1 BILFERFER
services provided by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited for the year ended ZE& I EMKAMER D FIRMEHN B L IEET

31 December 2021 are set out in the table below: RGBT B RS :
Services
rendered
FriR e AR 75
(RMB’ 000)
(ANREBFT)
Audit services: EFTRTE
Annual audit of the financial statements of the ¥R E BB BENFEE ST
Group 3,000
Total ait 3,000
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during the
Reporting Period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out on pages 82 to
85 of this annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risk Management and Internal Control System

During the reporting year, the Group has complied with Code D.2 of
the CG Code through the establishment of an appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control system. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
system and the Board continuously monitors the performance of
management in discharging its responsibilities and has engaged an
external independent internal control consultant to review the Group’s
risk management and internal control system for the year. The review
procedures performed by the independent internal control consultant
include reviewing the existing risk management and internal control
system, assessing the adequacy of material internal controls for the
Group, and reporting key risk information and internal control findings
to the Board and management, and the management has reported the
internal control findings and risk assessment results identified by the
independent internal control consultant to the Board and has
implemented an action plan and will provide the Board with regular
updates on the remediation progress.
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Reviewing the Effectiveness of Risk Management
and Internal Control System

During the reporting year, the Board has conducted a review of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system, including but not
limited to () changes in the nature and extent of significant risks and
the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s
continuing oversight of the risk and internal control system, (iii)
communication of oversight results with the Board and the Audit
Committee to assess the scope and frequency of the effectiveness of
the Company’s control and risk management, (iv) significant control
deficiencies or weaknesses identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting process and compliance with the Listing
Rules, and (vi) review of the risk management and internal control
reviews conducted by the independent internal control consultant
during the year.

Based on the above review, the Board is of the opinion that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system are effective and
adequate and no material issues have been identified that may have an
impact on the financial controls, operational controls, compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group. In addition, the
Board also considers that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training courses and budget of the Company’s accounting,
compliance, legal and financial reporting functions were adequate and
effective during the reporting year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under the new Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules.
The Company has adopted a continuous disclosure compliance policy
which sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers
of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner. Briefing session
is held regularly for officers to facilitate their understanding and
compliance with the policy.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association, general meetings shall also be convened on
the written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company of
any one or more members of the Company holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

To safeguard Shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolutions
are and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors.

The procedures for Shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director is available on the Company’s website
(https://www.dexinfuwu.com). Shareholders may lodge written notice to
the joint company secretaries of the Company at 40/F, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such
written notice is given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that the
lodgment of such notice shall commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The written notice will be verified with the joint
company secretaries of the Company and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, they will ask the Nomination
Committee and the Board to consider to include the resolution in the
agenda for the general meeting proposing such person to be elected
as a Director.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the above paragraph.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by
contacting the Company or directly by raising the questions at an
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting. The contact
details of the Company are set out in the Company’s website
(www.dexinfuwu.com).

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address:
7/F, Hangzhou Zhiyi Dexin Building, No. 588, Huanzhan East Road,
Jianggan District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong:
40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone:
+400-905-7060 (Customer Service Centre — Hangzhou, PRC)
+86 0571-88173911

E-mail address:
ir@shengquanwuye.com

Shareholders may also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the forthcoming annual general meeting,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company has been
amended and restated with effect from the Listing Date, and it is
available on the respective website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2021, there has not been any change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Bil SR &

th
[l /
ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dexin
Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.

1. Trade and other receivables
Refer to the Note 22 of the consolidated financial statements
The Group tested the impairment and estimation for expected
credit loss allowance (“ECL”) for trade and other receivables. This
estimation is significant to our audit because the balance of trade
receivables of RMB422,014,000 as at 31 December 2021 is
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the

Group’s estimation involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment and ECL
assessment;

—  Check the computation of ECL calculation;

—  Assessing ageing of the debts;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s estimation for expected credit loss
allowance for trade and other receivables is supported by the
available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WA B AR E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website
at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/
auditing-assurance/auditre/.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO7268
Hong Kong, 27 May 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEnmkEMEER R

2021 2020
20214 20204F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®ETIT ARETF T
Revenue N 8 870,422 692,319
Cost of sales $HE A AR (571,340) (456,562)
Gross profit EF 299,082 235,757
Other income E A 10 14,494 6,432
Other (losses)/gains — net Hib (B518) W F 58 11 (11,583) 1,917
Selling and marketing expenses HERZHEAS (14,111) (7,914)
Administrative expenses TERAX (146,322) (97,746)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment loss) & 5 K £ b fE UL 0B 2 mE
on trade and other receivables BeCREER) 682 (2,656)
Operating profit = alpiE 142,242 135,790
Interest income FEHA 3,782 2,779
Finance costs =YD %N (598) (2,248)
Finance income/(cost) — net BMEWA(KA) F5E 12 3,184 531
Profit before taxation B %t R F1 145,426 136,321
Income tax expenses FriS i 13 (35,376) (30,514)
Profit and total comprehensive FRABREZEEEE
income for the year 14 110,050 105,807
Profit and total comprehensive LA & 75 FE 4 < P B &
income for the year 2EIEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ =N 98,222 97,190
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M o= 11,828 8,617
110,050 105,807
Earnings per share BEREH
— Basic and diluted (RMB) — BEARAREE(ARE) 17 0.118 0.136
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GEMBIRAER

2021 2020
20214 20204
NO’QGS RMB’O(E) RMB'OOQ
B 5 AR®ETT ARETF T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment and W~ B R R R A
right-of-use assets HE 18 11,673 13,327
Intangible assets BVEE 19 2,403 2,015
Deferred income tax assets RSB EE 29 7,369 7,442
Investment in associates REEE QN FIHIRE 20 2,450 1,470
Other receivables and prepayments H b U R IB K FE A 3R IB 22 5,880 =
29,775 24,254
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 21 8,349 7,647
Trade and other receivables and B 5 REAMEURIAUR
prepayments SEANE O ) 22 449,579 180,048
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBEFELRLES
profit or loss AN REE 23 - 3,540
Pledged bank deposit EEIRITFR 24 250,851 242
Cash and cash equivalents HekReSEED 24 499,983 229,212
1,208,762 420,689
Current liabilities mENE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E AR FRIE 25 249,562 207,269
Contract liabilities aHEE 26 107,753 111,845
Lease liabilities HEAR 28 3,420 2,925
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT SR & & 17,022 31,850
377,757 353,889
Net current assets REEEFE 831,005 66,300
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERREBAMSE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 860,780 91,054
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Lease liabilities HEAR 28 569 2,626
569 2,626
NET ASSETS HEFE 860,211 88,428
Capital and reserves BEREE
Share capital f% < 30 8,462 =
Reserves ] 32 827,195 75,870
Equity attributable to owners of EATHER NEHER
the Company 835,657 75,870
Non-controlling interests JEPTE AR = 24,554 12,558
TOTAL EQUITY R EE 860,211 88,428

F86E EF163E MR A M MmEK B 1M 20224F
SA27THEES=S AN RETEILHAATE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

May 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: EEE:
Mr. Tang Junjie Ms. Zhu Xiaoli
EEgEEE KiEFLt
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERREEBR

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATHHNEL
Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserves profits Total interests equity
BEx  ROiE EFREE  EERE RENE @t FiEkER  EREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H - - 83,843 9,622 57,349 150,814 (1,758) 149,056
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ FAFIE L 2wk B E

for the year — — — — 97,190 97,190 8,617 105,807
Dividends declared by a company now ~ BAKAEEMAAREE

comprising the Group to its then BRESKHRS

shareholders — — - — (69,192 (69,192 — (69,192
Transactions with non-controlling HERRERNRH

interests - - 3,152 - - 3,152 (3,152) -
Capital contribution from the then BAKA KB R R EFR

shareholder of a company now RI&

comprising the Group - — 7,267 - — 7,267 7,733 15,000
Deemed distribution to its then RIEMEERRRES K

shareholders - - (128,465) - - (128,465) - (128,465)
Deemed contribution from the controlling £ B & 4R 48 e L AR 3R 1

shareholder in respect of the group &

reorganisation - - 7,596 - - 7,596 - 7,596
Capital injection by a third party investor SE=FEREAETE - - 7,508 = = 7,508 = 7,508
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeEEH B A Al - - - - - - 1,103 1,103
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHEAR - - - - - - 15 15
Transfer to statutory reserves EIBRE AT G - - - 9,310 (9,310) = = =
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H — — (19,099) 18,932 76,037 75,870 12,558 88,428
At 1 January 2021 20211818 = = (19,099) 18,932 76,037 75,870 12,558 88,428
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ FRFIER2E K EE

for the year = = = = 98,222 98,222 11,828 110,050
Capital injection by a non-controlling FaRERTE

interest = = = = = = 168 168
Issue of shares BT 2,221 659,344 - - - 661,565 - 661,565
Capitalisation issue BARET 6,241 (6,241) - - - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserves ey = = - 8,675 (8,675) - - -
At 31 December 2021 R2021%F12A318 8,462 653,103 (19,099) 217,607 165,584 835,657 24,554 860,211
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHESRER

Yy s

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABREBTR AR¥T T
Cash flows from operating activities CEFBELERERE
Profit before taxation B 25 A AR 145,426 136,321
Adjustments for: FATSBEIEL AT
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - BB KA &
and right-of-use assets FHEEEITE 10,688 7,855
Amortisation of intangible assets | & 554 155
Impairment loss on trade and other B 5 kA ERRIA 2
receivables BB (682) 2,656
Interest income F B U A (3,782) (2,779)
Finance costs b & B AN 598 2,248
Net gains on financial assets at fair value BRAREEFAERHR
through profit or loss BEETABEN S R
BEMFINE - (2,548)
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant HEWE BB KKE
and equipment ZEE M
BB & 5% 31 -
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEHRI
working capital KERSME 152,833 143,908
Change in inventories GFEEE) (702) 13,538
Change in trade and other receivables and B 5 K H b j& Y kI LA
prepayments MBS FIE 2 E &) (137,073) 38,992
Change in trade and other payables B MEMEMAREY
gk o) 42,293 43,586
Change in contract liabilities ABHEEEZE (4,092) 33,117
Increase in restricted cash PR &3 & 1 0 = (90)
Cash generated from operations BEMBHEE 53,259 273,051
Income tax paid B FER (50,131) (14,706)
Net cash generated from EEERHABRLTHE
operating activities 3,128 258,345
Cash flows from investing activities BREFEBHRERE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at far HEE AR EBETER
value through profit or loss HEEHT AB=MNE R
BEMERE 168,095 312,759
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through  BEER AL BETER
profit or loss EE#E T ABROSR
BE (163,500) (272,620)
Loans to related parties W AR H R ERNE XK = (70,000)
Repayments from related parties A B 5 I8 30 - 70,000
Loan to third parties RE=FRENERK (137,656) —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WENE (8,075) (7,050)
Purchases of investment properties EEREME = (300)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B 8 A &) - 1,262
Interest received B W FI 2 2,727 2,779
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties — H & & ¥ Fr 18 78 = 30,256
Purchases of intangible assets EERTEE (942) (1,019)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWHE  BEREZH
equipment 1S3RIB - 7
Investment in an associate REE QN E IR E (980) (1,470)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR FEHRIE = 600
Net cash generated from investing activities {R&FERBIREFE (140,331) 65,274
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Cash flows from financing activities S FEEMNRERE
Deemed distribution to its then shareholders BAERH & R 2 K = (128,465)
Dividends paid by a company comprising the HARAEENARIREE
Group to its then shareholders Ry (% SRR A RO AR B, - (69,192)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings R R H M ERATSFIE 40,000 47,800
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EEBITREMER (40,000) (74,300)
Deemed contribution from the controlling BIEREBZERBERLE
shareholder of the Group = 7,596
Capital contribution from the then shareholder of IR EE K A7) & B
a company now comprising the Group REEE — 15,000
Capital injection by a third party investor FE=HREEITE - 7,508
Capital injection by a non-controlling interest IEERERIEE 168 =
Interest paid B & (369) (1,930)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRHAES LD (2,781) (2,096)
Listing expenses paid B EmAE = (1,086)
Increase in restricted cash PR 2R &1 0 (250,609) —
Proceed from issue of shares BT D 2 P55 661,565 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) AL EEEN AT (FTR)IR&
financing activities R 407,974 (199,165)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HERBEL£EEMEMEE 270,771 124,454
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FYRERASEEY
of the year 229,212 104,758
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ERREREEEY
of the year 499,983 229,212
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents HERREEEBYMZ2
Bank and cash balances 1T RIRE AR 499,983 229,212
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dexin Services Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 22 October 2020 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 15 July 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements (the “Listing Business”). The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group”. The Company’s ultimate holding company is Shengfu
International Limited. The ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Group is Mr. Hu Yiping (#8—, “Mr. Hu” or the “Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”). RMB is the functional currency of the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Prior to the completion of the reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) as described below, the listing business was
principally operated by Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co.,
Ltd. (“Shengquan Property”) and its subsidiaries and certain
fellow subsidiaries controlled by Mr. Hu in the PRC (the “Listing
Business”). The Listing Business is controlled by Mr. Hu.

Prior to the completion of the Reorganisation, Shengquan
Property also held certain subsidiaries engaged in other business
not relating to the Listing Business (the “Excluded Business”).
The Listing Business and the Excluded Business are operated
independently and managed by different management teams.

AR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing”), the Reorganisation was undertaken pursuant to which
the group companies engaged in the Listing Business and
controlled by Mr. Hu were transferred to the Company. The
Reorganisation involves the following major steps:

(@ In August and September 2020, Shengquan Property
acquired certain fellow subsidiaries engaged in the Listing
Business from the entities controlled by Mr. Hu at total
consideration of RMB72,665,000.

(b) In September 2020, Shengquan Property disposed certain
subsidiaries engaged in the Excluded Business to the
entities controlled by Mr. Hu at a total consideration of
RMB7,596,000.

(¢ On 21 October 2020, one of the then shareholders of
Shengquan Property transferred 7.5% equity interest in
Shengquan Property to a pre-IPO investor. Upon completion
of the transfer, Shengquan Property was 74.3% indirectly
held by a company controlled by Mr. Hu and 25.7% by two
other shareholders.

(d) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
22 October 2020 which is held 74.3% by Shengfu
International Limited (“Shengfu International”, an entity
controlled by Mr. Hu) and 25.7% by two other
shareholders.

(e)  Shengping International Limited (“Shengping International”)
was incorporated in the BVI on 26 October 2020 and held
by the Company.

()  On 2 November 2020, Sheng Quan Holding (Hong Kong)

Limited (“Shengquan HK”) was incorporated in Hong Kong
by Shengping International.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(90 On 1 November 2020, Zhi Da Xiao Rui (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Zhida Xiaorui”), an entity controlled by another pre-IPO
investor, agreed to inject HK$8,900,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB7,508,000) to Shengquan Property in
return of 5% of its equity interest.

(h)  On 16 November 2020, Zhejiang Shengquan Technology Co,
Ltd. (“Shengquan Technology”) was incorporated and held
by Shengquan HK.

(i) On 16 November 2020, Shengquan Technology acquired
95% equity interest in Shengquan Property at a
consideration of RMB55,800,000 from its then shareholders.
Upon completion of the transaction, Shengquan Property
was 95% owned by Shengquan Technology and 5% owned
by Zhida Xiaorui.

() On 30 December 2020, the Company acquired the
immediate holding company of Zhida Xiaorui and as
exchange by issuing 5% shares of the Company. Upon
completion of such equity transfer, the Company indirectly
owns 100% equity interests of Shengquan Property and the
Company was then owned as to 70.6% by Shengfu
International.

After the completion of Reorganisation steps as described above,
the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group.

Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation, the Listing
Business is conducted through Shengquan Property and its
subsidiaries and certain fellow subsidiaries which were all
ultimately controlled by Mr. Hu. The Listing Business has been
ultimately controlled by Mr. Hu. Pursuant to the Reorganisation,
the Listing Business are transferred to and held by the Company.
The Company has not been involved in any other business prior
to the Reorganisation and do not meet the definition of a
business. The Reorganisation is merely a reorganisation of the
Listing Business with no change in management and the ultimate
owner of the Listing Business remained the same. The Group is
presented using the carrying values of the Listing Business for
both years presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2021. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (the “HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The application of these new
HKFRSs will not have material impact on the financial statements
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and the
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities as if they had been
combined from the date when they first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statements of cash flows
include the results and cash flows of the combining entities from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities first came under the common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The consolidated statements of financial position have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities as if the Group structure as at 31 December 2020 had
been in existence at the end of each reporting period. The net
assets of the combining entities are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or gain on bargain purchase
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net
profit or loss of any combining entities in order to achieve
consistency of the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as would
be required if the previously held equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses of
goodwill is the same as that of other assets. Impairment losses of
goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability
to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
share of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure
the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
presentation currency and functional currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are o

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at RABEAABESE R ZERKRE -

the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of

that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FEMBRRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives or annual rate on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

10%-33.33%
10%-33.34%

Equipment and machinery
Vehicles and others

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is

the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. An investment property is measured initially
at its cost including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of investment
properties, less a residual value of 0%, if any, using the
straight-line method over their lease term typically varying from 4
to 5 years.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
properties on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment properties is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease, and the
same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under finance
leases.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
(@) Computer software

Intangible assets mainly include computer software. They are
initially recognised and measured at costs incurred to
acquire and bring them to use. Intangible assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives (generally 10
years based on management’s expectation on the
technological lives of the computer software), using the
straight-line method which reflects the pattern in which the
intangible asset’s future economic benefits are expected to
be consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the
Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rate is as follows:

Land and buildings 20%-33.33%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment in the leases.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised
at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (the
“Financial assets at FVTPL”). Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost
and the conditions of debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial
recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair
value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
values recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest
income and dividend income. Interest income and dividend
income are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets as
defined in HKFRS 15. Expected credit losses are the weighted
average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (‘lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws
that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be
satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation
is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control
of the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BEXE5ER @

RKEERESHHIWA

WATRBEE PRI M)A KMERNR
B2EZEREXFEIE X IEERR
F=TRBHEE - BREFPNRKRER
BEEMBARGEHEEB —FNELH - K
BEEREAREBOINTELETHE -

AR BN ST A & P 8 58 2 n sk AR A 42
ROBHORERERRA - BT ALK
LB HEREDED - BROEER KR
BN R ER B TK o HEATER
JB #) B (T RI R BE B EE A

— EPRBKRFERNEEELM
REH M

— AREENRIENREA —ERAIR
HRFABREFRFHOEE K

- FARERBROYLEAZEAKEEE
WRAEMNEE BAKBAEL
5 /3B TER Y B #8823 58 il e Bl
A -

fiai /B 49 B 1 RI BE RS DR - R TOIRIRTE
REBROEEREEER - BRI W&
TA %R P TS S i S AR 745 22 151 4 O B ) G

17
s ©

HilrA
R8I T H2 B SR TR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the at the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged in profit or loss
represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are

recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

CRITICAL KEY ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period,

that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment for trade and other receivables and
prepayments

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables and prepayments, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Income taxes and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward
and deductible temporary differences are recognised and
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the relevant assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of each reporting date. In determining the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions related
to the operating environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgement on the part of the directors.
Any change in such assumptions and judgement would
affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the net profit in future years.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group
entities RMB. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2021, if the RMB had weakened/
strengthened 5 per cent against the Hong Kong dollar and
United States dollars with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit before tax for the year would have been
RMB14,452,000 higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Unites States dollars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group
entities RMB. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash at bank and trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Apart from trade receivables due from related parties, the
Group has large number of customers and there was no
concentration of credit risk.

The Group’s cash at bank is mainly held by well-known
financial institutions. Management does not foresee any
significant credit risks arising from these deposits and does
not expect that these financial institutions will default and
cause losses to the Group.

The Group assessed that the expected loss rate for trade
receivables from related parties were low considering the
good finance position and credit history of the related
parties.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for trade receivables due from third parties. To measure the
ECL, trade receivables due from third parties have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The ECL also incorporate forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables due from related parties is considered to be low,
since they have a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. The Group has
assessed that the ECL rate for the amounts due from
related parties are immaterial under 12 months ECL method
and considered them to have low credit risk, and thus the
loss allowance is immaterial.

For other receivables other than those from related parties,
management makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience.

The Group considers the probability of default whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

— actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower

— significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrowers, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers and changes in the
operating results of the borrowers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

6. £FEEER»
(b)

EERE @

FEEBRHAEEBRREAERHNRE
RABAEEMT

Basis for recognition of expected

Category Group definition of category credit loss provision
=5 FAREHHZENER ERENEERERENEE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a 12 months expected losses. Where
strong capacity to meet contractual cash the expected lifetime of an asset
flows is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime
F% FFEARBREAGENELESNERNE RRI1I2EANEHER - HREH

Underperforming

E2pES

Non-performing

TR

and 2021.

loss

= £
@//ILE

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if interest and/or
principal repayments are 180 days past due

15 5 2\ b BB 38 N FE R IR ¢ R FLE RT3
ReBH@H180K A EEERREEZE
#n

Interest and/or principal repayments are 365
days past due
B R/ EEFE 65K

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In
calculating the expected credit
considers historical
receivables and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic
data. As there was no significant change of the customer
base, historical credit loss rate of customers and forward-
looking information for the years ended 31 December 2020

loss rates, the Group
rates for each category of
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRMEE

_ ~ N
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. LRIEEER @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRE @
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the loss allowance R20204F N2021F12 A31H » &
provision for the trade and other receivables due from third WE=7E 5 REAMEBRIENE
parties was determined as follows. The expected credit BREGBETEOT - TXEBEEES
losses below also incorporated forward looking information. BB ERIELEER -
2021 2020
2021 20204
Gross Gross
Expected carrying Loss Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance loss rate amount allowance
THEAE 18 = RE4E ikl TREAES IR X RmAasE EiEEE
At 31 December 2021 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
%2021&12}5]315 AEﬁg:FJTC AE?-%:FE }\Efﬁg:‘:ﬁ /\E%:Fﬁ
Trade receivables EEY AN
Related parties 2l 0.5% 29,945 149 0.5% 26,162 131
Third party aging B=FHRER
Within 1 year 14E AR 5% 124,674 6,234 5% 77,432 3,872
1 to 2 years 1324 10% 29,904 2,990 10% 17,360 1,736
2 to 3 years 2E3E 30% 4,862 1,459 30% 18,549 5,565
3 to 4 years 3F44F 50% 5,569 2,785 50% 2,564 1,282
Over 4 years 4B E 100% 4,025 4,025 100% 4,018 4,018
Total st 198,979 17,642 146,085 16,604
Other receivables Hfth FEU FRIE
Related parties BAHsE T 0.5% 53,994 270 0.5% 101 —
Third party aging F=FHIRE
Within 1 year 1E LR 1% 178,684 2,508 5% 23,924 1,196
1 to 2 years 15826 8% 7,198 582 10% 1,885 189
2 to 3 years 2E34F 17% 323 54 30% 1,285 386
3 to 4 years 3FAL 14% 916 129 50% 1,067 534
Over 4 years 4FEPL E 42% 5,316 2,211 100% 5,169 5,169
Total @t 246,431 5,754 33,431 7,474
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables during the year, including
both specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

Impairment of trade receivables

6. £FEEER»
(b) EERPE s

RER - B 5 REAMERFIRZRK
BRE 2 (BRI EEAER
BT

B SRR E

Trade Other
receivables receivables Total

BS Hit

FEWRIE  EWRIE sast
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBFTT ARBTET ARBTRET

At 1 January 2020 R20204%1 A1H 14,942 6,585 21,627
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 1,662 994 2,656
Written off k! = (1095) (109)
At 31 December 2020 and H2020F 12 A31H &

1 January 2021 202141 A1H 16,604 7,474 24,078
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 1,038 (1,720) (682)
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A831H 17,642 5,754 23,396

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the gross carrying
amount of trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments) was RMB445,410,000 and RMB179,516,000
respectively, and thus the maximum exposure to loss was
RMB422,014,000 and RMB155,438,000 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBHRFTME
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. SREMERE
(c) Liquidity risk (c) HENE LB
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and AEBZHRETDEMHERBARE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HyRBHESHTKUBREERR
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements THeFE REEREARRHZ
in the short and longer term. MBERHERK -
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of AEBSREEERARTRIEAESR
the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: EEHZHBMBESTET :

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and

1 year 2 years 5 years Total

1R 1E25 2F5%F #st

31 December 2021 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20214128318 ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A e 3R 249,562 - - 249,562
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,524 438 199 4,161
253,086 438 199 253,723

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and

1 year 2 years 5 years Total
1EUR 1226 2FB54F BEr
31 December 2020 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2020%12 A31H AREEF T AREEF T AREEF T AREEF T
Trade and other payables B 5K EMEMNZE 207,269 = = 207,269
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,184 2,468 370 6,022
210,453 2,468 370 213,291
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FI=Z== b
Other than cash and cash equivalents, the Group has no RIESRRSFEWIN  REEIL
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’s EHEMBEANGEEERBE &
operating cash flows are substantially independent of SENKERSREEARN T TS
changes in market interest rates. FEEFHHNZE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

6. £FEEER»

() &R TI AR

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
Financial assets: TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL, EAnEEFTEAEES
mandatorily measured FFABENEREE
(CGablEET =) = 3,540
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEKAGTECEREE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BFEBREENESHFEY) 1,172,848 384,892
Financial liabilities: TRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEERATEZ2MAE 253,551 212,820

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMB R RN

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREEAE®
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December (@) M2021F12 A31 B AR BEBHK
2021: TR

Fair value measurements using

ARBEESAERAZESR
Level 1: Level 2: Level 3: Total
F—: EZ8: E=4: gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Recurring fair value EEEAREETE:
measurements:
Assets: BE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBEEFEEEES
SFABENEREE = = = =
Total recurring fair value EEMAREEEEE
measurements = = = =
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December HA2020F 12 A31 B AR BEEHK
2020: R
Fair value measurements using
RABENERAZER
Level 1: Level 2: Level 3: Total
E—&%: B B=1: BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value EEMEAREETE :
measurements:
Assets: BE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREETEEEEY
STABRNEREE - - 3,540 3,540
Total recurring fair value EEEAREEAEEE
measurements — — 3,540 3,540
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREENE®
(o) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level b) BEF=FEIALEBEIFENEE
3: 2 H AR
Financial
assets
at FVTPL
BAREENE
BHEHHAE
BHEREE
RMB’000
ARMF
At 1 January 2020 R2020%F1 A 1H 41,131
Addition NE 272,620
Disposal e (312,759)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss (#) REEERZ AR EERE®H 2,548
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 M2020F 12 A31 8 &
202151 A1H 3,540
Addition NE 163,500
Disposal HE (168,095)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss (#) RESERZAREBEKE #) 1,055
At 31 December 2021 R20214F12 A31H =
#) Include gains or losses for assets held at 2021 (#)BIER 2021 F#H 2 EER RS
L E 1A 1,055
#) Include gains or losses for assets held at 2020  (#)BIER2020F 1 H 2 B EK WS
HERE 2,548

128

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and
valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements:

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to the
Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.
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mEMBRRMEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AR{EHE
Level 3 fair value measurements E=EHR
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation technique/ increase of
Description Unobservable inputs Range inputs 2020
AR R
R ERM, T B R & HARBEY
i A EUIR HE 2 20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARMET T
Financial assets at FVTPL Discounted cash flow 3%—-4% increase = 3,540
method/Expected
rate of return per
annum
BRARBENEEEZHTA BBRBReTEE TEH 3%—4% 3N
BaremEE O 3 X
REVENUE 8. Wz

Revenue represents income from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and community

value-added services.

Weste R B MEE R - IEETERER

BRAEEERERBEZHEA -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers: REZFE &K
Property management services )2 B R 507,083 370,415
Value-added services to non-property owners 3F 3 == 1218 iR % 180,914 178,781
Community value-added services R IEE R 182,425 143,123
870,422 692,319
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FEMBRRMEE

8. REVENUE (continued)

130

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, revenue from
entities controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and
joint ventures and associates of the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder contributed to 29% and 31% of the Group’s
revenue, respectively. Other than entities controlled by the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and joint ventures and associates
of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder, the Group had a large
number of customers and none of whom contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2021.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers:

The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all the Group’s revenues were derived in the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Weis ()

HE2021F K 2020F12 A31HIEFE -
PR B B AR PR AR AR B2 5 O B B DA R SR AR 4
ARARER A A & 1b 3 R B A R R 5 Bl
IEARE B ZERI29% K 31% © B &A%
PSR I 0 B BE K AR R IR A &
¥RBERNRIN AEEREAERF
HE2020F K 2021F12 A31HIEFE -
MEA MRS BB AN E B RS A 10% 3¢ A
J: °

REEFSHKR A

AEENTBLEETRUATE - At
AEBREE20214F £2020%12 A31H
IFERRMERAETREFE -

2021 2020
2021 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TX ARET T
Timing of revenue recognition W N\ 522 B9 B

Over time BE B 8 764,910 606,492
At a point in time H— 2 105,512 85,827
870,422 692,319

Unsatisfied performance obligations AETHBOERE

For property management services and value-added services to
non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly basis. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these type of contracts. The majority
of the property management services contracts do not have a
fixed term.

For community value-added services, they are rendered in short
period of time, which is generally less than a year, and the Group
has elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these type of contracts.
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the
“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segment, has been
identified as the executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group is
principally engaged in the provision of property management
services, community value-added services, and value-added
services to non-property owners. Management reviews the
operating results of the business as one operating segment to
make decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the
CODM of the Company regards that there is only one segment
which is used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue were derived in the

PRC for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, all of the non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.

OTHER INCOME

mEMBRRMEE

SEEH
EEECREBEEIBLEARARE (XEE
ERFE ) ZHRERELEDE - £
ERERRECHBEER/ARANITE
T RENEBREFEEZEDMHE
IH o

HE2020F 202112 A31 B IEFE -
REEFEREREMEEERS - =
AR RIEFEETIEERE - BRERZE
B EFEEER—ELE DA ETER -
LUREERDE - At - AAFKEEL
ERRERE  E—EAD AR EL B8
R o

AEBNEFEKLEEEBEHUNFTE - E
I B E 20204 K 2021F12 A31 H IE4
B AEERNFABR=EEREFE -

MR20204F 2021 F12 A31H » KEB P
ARIEREBEEHMNTE -

10. HibUg A

2021 2020

2021 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETIT AR FIT

Government grants (note) BERAT B (B 5E) 12,530 5,708
Value-added tax deductibles A0 1,964 724
14,494 6,432

Note: Government grants mainly consisted of financial support funds granted by the
local governments.

M BA#HEZEEMTBFRTHMKEL -
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FEUBHRFTME
11. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 11. Hib (B518) W25 iF 88
2021 2020
2021 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARETFTT
Net fair value gains on financial assets BEAREBETEBEES:T
at FVTPL ABENSREEND R
BEEK=FE = 2,548
Exchange loss [ 5 g5 48 (12,504) —
Others HAth 921 (631)
(11,583) 1,917
12. FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET 12. FIBWAN (RA)F8E
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Finance income EhE WA
Interests income from bank deposits |ITEFF B MWA 3,782 1,191
Interests income from related parties BB 5 A B U A - 1,588
3,782 2,779
Finance costs B & B AN
Interest expenses for borrowings ERAERAX (369) (1,930)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAEMNBRAX (229) (318)
(598) (2,248)
3,184 531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

mEMBRRMEE

13. AR X

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARET T
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax  BIEAF{1E — R EFRSE
(“EIT"): ([T
Bl -
— Provision for the year — FAEE 35,303 27,401
Deferred tax (note 29): EIERIE (FI7E29) 73 3,113
35,376 30,514

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The Company’s
direct subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated under the
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and, accordingly,
is exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax was provided as the Group did not have assessable
profit in Hong Kong.

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on
the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

The general corporate income tax rate in PRC is 25%, with the
exception of any preferential treatments received, such as the
15% preferential tax rate that Hangzhou Xier Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Xier Technology”, a PRC subsidiary of the Group) can enjoy as
a result of its qualification as a High and New Technology
Enterprise (‘HNTEs”) from December 2021 to November 2024.

ARB NS S EMAR LN —RER
RAEREEAR  AHERRHRNFSE
EFRREHR - ARARNEBERRESHNE
ENBARIRERBEBAESBEER
ERAPAEMMKR - AR H RN LB
MERBEEMER -

BEENBHHER16.5% AR AEE L
BEELBRBNERTAE  RALERE
BREHATEER

AE B B A E L SRS
BETDRBEREEAE 2EREHIY
FARGEFERGNBIRERRETE -

PR —REEMSRRER25% - ES
BEABRI  GIAINBBRIEERAD
A ([BER  ~SENTERBAF])
ARESEMEITEE ((SHMERMtE])
EIE - B2021F 12 AE2024F 11 Ar[ =
Z15%HEBRFTBHE -
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FEMBRRMEE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on
6 December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their
foreign investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax of
10%, a lower 5% withholding income tax rate may be applied
when the immediate holding companies of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China are incorporated in Hong Kong and fulfil the
requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between Mainland
China and Hong Kong. The Group has not accrued any
withholding income tax for these undistributed earnings of its
subsidiaries in Mainland China as the Group does not have a plan
to distribute these earnings from its subsidiaries in Mainland
China.

The reconciliation between income tax expense and the product
of profit before tax at applicable tax rates is as follows:

13. A8z @)

RIEN2007F 12 A6 HEMHI B EFTER
EE MG H2008F1 18 1% - Ath
EATEANFBREGIMNEEEDIRD
% B FEIZ10% M F R BMIBHETEH « i
R A B A RN EEZERARERS
FEM AR S R A& B B i B R B FT AT S
MBI ZHER T - BE A 5% &K
TEFAEHRME - AR ASELETSH
Ve Q=R ey = NG S R
7 £2 B 3 Ak gt P B 9 b B B A B R R
BN EETHERITBINATER ©

PSS FA 32 SR A B R 5t L Z BR AT 7
BERBEOHERAT :

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETTT
Profit before taxation B 252 Al A1) 145,426 136,321
Tax calculated at applicable income tax rate %@ MR ST R25% &
of 25% # A IE 36,356 34,080
Preferential income tax rates applicable to BARAEEETETAA
certain companies comprising the Group FEBEFS R X (1,622) (3,050)
Tax effect of income not taxable and B AR B A K A A] H0F
expenses not deductible for tax purposes X R T 2 2 3,775 (516)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B A AT R R AT
recognised B8 (3,133) =
35,376 30,514
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14. PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging the

following:

mEMBRRMEE

14, EFRABAREZE W EBEH

REBFEAFBE LR TSEEZ
AE -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Auditor’s remuneration % R = B 3,000 =
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEREZEALER
equipment and right-of-used assets BEERE 10,688 7,855
Amortisation of intangible assets Em & E 554 155
Listing expenses EmZ 13,123 12,285
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on trade and & 5 & H th & U 3k 18 (%
other receivables B,/ mEEE (682) 2,656
Loss on disposal/written off of property, HEYME BEEREBEZE
plant and equipment 1B s mE -
B L] 31 —
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: & LA (BIFEZEEMHS) ¢
Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - e kits 224,482 166,985
Social insurance expenses and housing fteREAZREEREHN
benefits (Note (i) (BFEEG)) 35,572 17,273
Other employee benefits Hh{E B 15 5 13,387 11,451
Total staff costs BT XA 4R%E 273,441 195,709

Note:

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a
defined contribution scheme administered and operated by the local
municipal governments. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. The contributions
are calculated based on a certain percentage of the employees’ salaries as
agreed by the local municipal governments. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
and its employees are required to make monthly contributions. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the defined contribution scheme is to
make the required contribution to the scheme. There is no forfeited
contribution under the defined contribution scheme available to reduce the
existing level of contributions in future years.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits associated with these schemes beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The decrease of other employee benefits for the year ended 31 December
2020 was mainly due to the exemption of social insurance according to
security relief policies issued by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security and local municipal departments affected by Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19").

AEETEREARNES AL EBEHHIR
FYE IR R e FRE KT8 - A B E
B~ R A %At B R - R R B RR IR AR A B
& - YRR E T BT GBENESHFE NS
EBAAAE - REBTREITEARREE
BAR AR - AREE R E HREBIE
BEERRZBIEHAB IR - RBAEMR
Hetdl - WER AR D AR REFEERER
BEFOKF -

B b EEHEFON  ARERELMEARE
X EZER B RAARKER o

HZE2020F12 A31H IEFEMHEHAIE BEF]
AL EERREAXE2019FHATMRAS
([coVID-19]) B2 - A HERM RE
B0 K tth 5 T ER PP B AL AR R BUR  BA A
ZRE -
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HEMB R RME

15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

136

EMOLUMENTS

Housing
allowance and

contributions to Discretionary
a retirement bonuses and
Directors’ fees Salaries benefit scheme  other benefits Total
HERMREN BELTAREML
Ezne Fe&  EAEAR &7 a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE20215F12A31BILEE ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETT
Executive Directors HBiTES
Mr. Tang Junjie R - 550 77 136 763
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli KERZ L - 300 77 | 448
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFRTES
Mr. Jia Shenghua (note i) BAES A (i) 86 - - - 86
Mr. Rui Meng (note i) REA S A (B 3Ei) 86 = = = 86
Mr. Yang Xi (note i) RS (P 86 = = = 86
Total @zt 258 850 154 207 1,469
Housing
allowance and
contributions to Discretionary
a retirement bonuses and
Directors’ fees Salaries  benefit scheme other benefits Total
EEEER
RINET Fioi=Rian
Exnd e B 570 RE B @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HBE2020F12A318 1L FE ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARBTFT ARETT
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Tang Junjie ERALE - 550 70 143 763
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli KEFZ L = 300 70 79 449
Total @zt - 850 140 222 1,212
Notes: B & -

(i) Appointed as director of the Company on 21 June 2021.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(0

R2021 56 A21 HEZE AR RRES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAHBERN
15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 15. EEREEITHASNE »
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FRAREENRAEZESTMALTHREEM
included two (2020: two) directors whose emoluments are H(2020F - MB)EFT RFEEWE
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the EREXZIHDITAINT R T=%
remaining three (2020: three) individuals are set out below: (2020F : =) ALHBNE ST -
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARETTT
Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - e kits 1,392 1,033
Social insurance expenses and fteRiEE R R E AL
housing benefits 211 211
Other employee benefits Hh g B 15 5 32 135
1,635 1,379
The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals with the B ME =42 (20204F : =) A LM
highest emoluments are within the following bands: SEELT
Number of employees
EEAH
2021 2020
2021 20204F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T 3 8
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FR - AEBVERNEEK AR TS M
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to ATEZREAME - 1ERIAZS E 3k i
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of ARE BB REN S EABEBAE - BIE
office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive any T E A& B S hEE ok R = R () B
emoluments during both years. & e
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FEUBHRFTME

16. DIVIDEND 16. &2
2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARBTT

Dividends declared and paid by Shengquan EXE ¥ A EE KRR S IR

Property to its then shareholders MR A5 /9 A% B, - 69,192

17.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HKO0.059 (equivalent to RMBO0.048) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021 per ordinary share has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately RMB98,222,000 (2020: RMB97,190,000) and on
the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year
of approximately 873,040,255 (2020: 716,582,598).

In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
ordinary shares issued as on the date of incorporation of the
Company and the corresponding capitalisation issue (note 30) of
712,249,712 shares were deemed to be issued on 1 January
2020 as if the Company has been incorporated by then. The
ordinary shares of 37,749,288 were deemed to be issued on 20
November 2020 (the date of capital injected by a third party
investor in Shengquan Property (note 2(g)).

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company had no

potential ordinary shares outstanding for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRMEE

18. Y% « BERR B LR EA#
BE

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARET T

Property, plant and equipment (a) Y BEKEE (9 8,582 8,685
Right-of-use assets (b) FREEE ) 3,091 4,642
11,673 13,327

(a) Property, plant and equipment

(a) ¥ WERRE

Equipment
and Vehicles
machinery and others Total
RIEREE HpRHEt st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2020 R202051 A1H 10,341 8,453 18,794
Additions NE 1,567 5,483 7,050
Disposal/write-off & (287) (10) (297)
At 31 December 2020 and MR2020F12 A31 8 &

1 January 2021 202151 A1H 11,621 13,926 25,547
Additions NE 1,330 6,745 8,075
Disposal/write-off k=P ¢! (31) (38) (69)
At 31 December 2021 H2021F12 A31H 12,920 20,633 33,553
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION E:tifERBE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 7,188 4,387 11,575
Provided for the year FNE 1,267 4,240 5,507
Eliminated on disposal/write-off 65 s 8 (215) (5) (220)
At 31 December 2020 and M2020F 12 A31H &

1 January 2021 202141 A 1H 8,240 8,622 16,862
Provided for the year FNEE 1,187 6,960 8,147
Eliminated on disposal/write-off &5 B 8 (31) (7) (38)
At 31 December 2021 M2021412 A31H 9,396 15,575 24,971
CARRYING VALUES R (&

At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A31H 3,524 5,058 8,582
At 31 December 2020 M2020412 A31H 3,381 5,304 8,685
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FEMBRRMEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

18. Y1 - B R a2 LU B 35 FH#E
BE®

(b) EHESE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

At 31 December: ®12A318 : ARETT ARET T

Land and buildings Tt T 3,091 4,642
Lease commitments of EHEENHERE

short-term leases 2,148 2,004

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:

ERNARBRRERENAEERHEE
BENIBMBRSTET -

Less than 1 year —F AR 3,524 3,184

Between 1 and 2 vyears —EWFE 438 2,468

Between 2 and 5 years EF S 199 370

4,161 6,022

2021 2020

2021 20204F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Year ended 31 December: BE12A31HIEEE : ARSTT ARETTT
Depreciation charge of CRAEEENEER

right-of-use assets

Land and buildings T REF 2,541 2,348

Expenses related to short-term leases 5 Hi7H & +HEA 5 2 6,074 3,820

Lease interests HEF S 229 318

Total cash outflow for leases HERS RN R 3,010 2,414

Additions to right-of-use assets REFCRAEEE 990 89

The Group leases various land and buildings. Lease
agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 3
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMB R RN

190. B &EE

Computer
software
HE R
RMB’000
ARET T
COST 5%
At 1 January 2020 R 202051 A1H 1,709
Addition NE 1,019
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020F 12 31 H & 20211 A1H 2,728
Addition NE 942
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 3,670
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION g
At 1 January 2020 7H2020F1 A1H 558
Provided for the year FNEAE 155
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H 713
Provided for the year FNEE 554
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A831H 1,267
CARRYING VALUE R
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 2,403
At 31 December 2020 7H2020%F12 A31H 2,015
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FEMB KM
20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtEATIHIRE
2021 2020
2021 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARBTT
Share of net assets: IR FEE 2,450 1,470
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the TRINTAEREARZ AEBEGFRA
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are 8Bl fE B R B 2 Bk N R AAEE o

accounted for using the equity method.

2021 2020

2021 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

Year ended 31 December: HE12ASIHILLEE : ARETT AR®EF T

Profit from continuing operations REFELEER 2 FH = —
Profit after tax from discontinued operations & H 24 IF KB EE 2 Tk

b = —

Other comprehensive income E b 2w = —

Total comprehensive income 2EKEAE = —

21. INVENTORIES 21. 58

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETIT ARETTT

Raw materials =M # 3,694 4,146

Others HAh 4,655 3,501

8,349 7,647
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mEMBRRMEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22 B RHMEWIRIEL R TE i+

PREPAYMENTS ™MIE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARET T
Current: ENEA :
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIA
— Related parties — B 29,945 26,162
— Third parties — FB=5 169,034 119,923
Less: allowance for impairment of BB 5 WG IE R E R
trade receivables (17,642) (16,604)
181,337 129,481
Other receivables HibEWRIE
— Deposits — && 79,975 12,416
— Payments on behalf of property owners — — KEXE X 7K
(Note (b)) (M EE (b)) 27,476 20,462
— Others — Hih 1,324 553
Less: allowance for impairment of R EL At R U SRR R B
other receivables (5,056) (7,474)
103,719 25,957
Prepayments HEftFRIE
— Prepayments for inventories (Notes (c)) — FEMEAMAFIEAE (M) 19,204 17,485
— Prepayments for listing expenses — A EMNRIE — 3,462 |
— Other prepayments — EhFEfTFOE 8,361 3,663
27,565 24,610
Loan receivables (Notes (d)) FEWE SR (M EE(d)) 137,656
Less: allowance for impairment of W EWE TR E R E
loan receivables (698)
136,958
449,579 180,048
Non-current: FEBNHA :
— Third parties (Notes (g)) — F=7 (k@) 5,880
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FEMBRRMEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(@)

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services income to
property owners and value-added services to non-property owners. Property
management services income are received in accordance with the terms of
the relevant services agreements. Service income from property management
service is due for payment by the residents upon the issuance of demand
note.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on recognition date of trade receivables were as follows:

22. & 5 K H fth FE W =R I8 LA & T 4+

;IE )

(@)

BHRYGRAEZRERETRENMEERE
PRIGWA R SRR IR ERT - MEEERBTK
A TR AR AR BE AR5 169 &) AR BRURER - (£ P B TR
BHAFBAE R MBI BN DEEERBH
MRASHA -

R20204F K 2021512 A31H » ERE SR
HIEERBHNE S EYGRIERERTAOT ¢

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBTIT

0 to 180 days 0Z=180K& 145,674 90,180
181 to 365 days 181E365K 7,127 11,035
1 to 2 years 15824 30,987 19,255
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 5,481 18,910
3 to 4 years 3E4F 5,664 2,678
Over 4 years 4FEP E 4,046 4,027
198,979 146,085

The balance represented mainly the payments on behalf of property owners
in respect of utility costs of properties.

In December 2020, initiated by one of the Group’s customer, the Group agreed
to offset the trade receivables due from the customer by purchasing certain
properties from a related party of the customer at total consideration of
RMB16,129,000 by reference to the market value of these properties. The
Group, the customer and the related party of the customer have further
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which the consideration for purchase
of properties was settled by and offset against the Group’s trade receivables
from the customer. The property certificates are in the process of obtaining
and the Group plans to sell the properties.

As at 31 December 2021, loans to third parties with an aggregate principal
amount of approximately RMB133,644,000 are unsecured, bear interest
7.2% per annum and are repayable within one year.

On 21 December 2021, the Group entered into a framework agreement to
acquire the 39.2% equity interest in a third party company, Hangzhou
Kaichuan investment management Co., Ltd (“Hanzhou Kaichuan”), at a
consideration of RMB5,880,000. The Group has prepaid all of the
consideration in December 2021. Up to the date of this report, the
transactions has been completed. Upon the completion of the acquisition,
Hangzhou Kaichuan will become a joint venture of the Group.
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

24.

mEMBRRMEE

23. MARFEFEBAREZEFTA

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BERMNEREE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Wealth management products I3 B EE o - 3,540

The Group acquired various wealth management products with an
expected return rate ranging from 1% to 9.4%. The fair values of
these investments were determined based on the expected return
as stipulated in relevant contracts with the issuers. The significant
unobservable input for the fair value measurement is the expected
annual return rate. The higher the expected annual return rate, the
higher the fair value.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the pledged bank deposit and cash
and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(‘RMB”) amounted to RMB473,202,000 (2020: RMB229,454,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

24.

AEEBASEEMER RBLQHEEN
F1%EQA4% 2 - ZFRENRAA(EE
THIRIBEREIT AR LR A RIFATARER
BEHEHREE - AAEEFENERTH
BERBABBE AFELRE - FitF
EOHEHE AABEES -

ERFRITERURIRE R
®%5EY

MR2021F12831H  KREBUARE
([ANRE D FHEMERIRRITF KA R
S MRS EEBEYW A ARKA473,202,0007T
(20204 : A R#229,454,0007T) ° AR
B SR INE B (R E AR KR INE
EIREBI)FTIR ©
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25.

146

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. S R EMEFRIE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT ARETFTT
Trade payables 2 5 FIR
— Related parties — s (a) 25 105
— Third parties — ®=F 86,977 62,226
87,002 62,331
Other payables b 5 3OE
— Deposits & (©) 35,143 28,137
— Amounts temporarily received = — EBE[E K T UELEY
from/on behalf of property &
owners (b) 79,336 57,990
— Amounts due to related parties — F&1tREAEE T 2018 (b) 740 338
— Amounts due to non-controlling — &< JE 52 A% 4 25 118
interests 1,172 1,172
— Payables for listing expenses  — MR EMFHKIE 1,231 11,207
— Accrued payroll — EREE 24,428 30,759
— Other taxes payables — HihEIE 15,116 13,262
— Other accrued expenses — HibfEstH 5,394 2,073
162,560 144,938
249,562 207,269
Notes: 5T
(@)  The aging analysis of trade payables based on invoice date were as follow: (@) BoRNREREZHAHRNRRSOTAT :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
Within 1 year 14 LA 72,841 58,996
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F#%B2F RN 13,075 1,996
After 2 year but within 3 years 2F 1B E3FR 1,022 843
Over 3 years BB E 64 496
87,002 62,331

(b) Amounts due to related parties and non-controlling interests were unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

(c) The amounts mainly represented utility expenses collected from the property
owners to be paid to related service providers and rental fee collected from

leasees to be returned to the property owners.
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. BHEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETTT

Contract liabilities eHamE

Property management services MEEERS 102,913 105,525

Value-added services to non-property owners 3F % 3 3% {8 iR 7% 1,060 1,066

Community value-added services 1 [ 3B AR 75 3,780 5,254
107,753 111,845

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied RERDEERENBLHEFERTBEHNA

at the end of year and expected to be recognised as revenue in: THEEERBBANR ZER :

— 2021 — 20214 = 111,845

— 2022 — 20224 107,753 —
107,753 111,845

Revenue recognised in the year that REAERHUA

was included in contract liabilities GtAFIHNEHBE)
at beginning of year 111,845 78,617

Unsatisfied performance obligations RXETHRBOEE

For property management services and value-added services to BB ERBRIEFFIRERBMS -

non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the REEZARRESREREAZSEHIW

amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds A ZEHREEHEASEZSHEPE

directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s HHEE - NEECREATEESE

performance to date, on a monthly basis. The Group has elected TEZEHEASYNFRBEHET - K

the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining HoWmEEERG S 4 & EE 8RB -

performance obligations for these type of contracts. The majority

of the property management services contracts do not have a

fixed term.

For community value-added services, they are rendered in short A EEEREMS HIORNEEHRNIR

period of time, which is generally less than a year, and the Group e BETE—F  AEEDBEEATHE

has elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the BAE  TEEZSHASONTIRELD

remaining performance obligations for these type of contracts. BfE -
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27. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

On 29 December 2021, Shanghai Xuguan Trading Co., Ltd. (/&
WE2EEABRAF) (the “Shanghai Xuquan”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
guarantee agreement with Hangzhou Ruiyang Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (M/MImEEEEEEFR R F) (the
“Hangzhou Ruiyang”), a business partner and an independent
third party of the Company, pursuant to which, Shanghai Xuquan
shall provide a guarantee for the amount of RMB496 million
borrowed by Hangzhou Ruiyang from Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch (the “Ping An Bank”) and receive 8% guarantee
fee from Hangzhou Ruiyang.

On 29 December 2021 and 6 January 2022, Shanghai Xuquan
entered into the 3 pledge contracts with Ping An Bank to pledge
the certificate of deposit of a total value of RMB300 million and
204.5 million, respectively. In December 2021 and January 2022,
Shanghai Xuquan pledged the certificates of deposit to Ping An
Bank of a total value of RMB250.6 million and RMB504.5 million,
respectively. In order to provide guarantees for Hangzhou
Ruiyang, for the amount of RMB496 million by way of pledge.
Shanghai Xuquan will receive an aggregate of 10.1% of the total
amount of the pledge contracts as the income (including the
2.1% interest income per year generated from the pledge
contracts and 8% guarantee fee per year from the guarantee
agreement). The financial guarantee contract was effective in
January 2022 which is the issuance of bills by Hangzhou Ruiyang
and commencement of the borrowing. For details of the financial
guarantee contract, please refer to the announcement dated 22
April 2022.

Up to the date of this report, all guarantees in favour of Ping An
Bank provided by the Shanghai Xuquan are released.
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&GE
Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
HEMFR HEARMRE

2021 2020 2021 2020

20214 20204 20214 20204
RMB’000 BVl RMB’000" Ea1YI=Xeleo)
AR Tt PNl A\ R% Tt NS

Within 1 year —FR 3,524 3,184 3,420 2,925
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2FR 438 2,468 375 2,268
After 2 year but within 5 years 2FBESF N 199 370 194 358
4,161 6,022 3,989 5,051
Less: Future finance charges B RRBEE A (172) (471) N/AFER N/ATERB
Present value of lease liabilities HEaEMWRE 3,989 5,551
Less: Amount due for settlement  Ji : 1218 8 REIEHE T
within 12 months (shown & (RRE
under current liabilities) BEETZ5]) (3,420) (2,925)
Amount due for settlement 121E A 1& B B E 5 A
after 12 months &% 569 2,626
The effective interest rate of the Group’s lease liabilities as at R2021F12A31BAKEHEGENE
31 December 2021 is 5.44% (2020: 5.44%). BRFIR 55.44% (20204 : 5.44%) °
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29. DEFERRED TAX

150

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised by the Group.

EEHIE

UATRAEEBRANEZELEHEEE
(AR -

Allowance
on doubtful Tax
debts losses Others Total
REREEE BIERSHE Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBETT AREBETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 7R2020F1H1H 5,258 5,604 (307) 10,555
Credited/(charged) to profit RIEEE A (FIKR)
or loss (8,516) (123) (8,113)
At 31 December 2020 and 202012 A31 H &
1 January 2021 20211 A1H 5,784 2,088 (430) 7,442
Credited/(charged) to profit Rigzst A GOER)
or loss (469) 430 (73)
At 31 December 2021 M2021412 A31H 5,750 1,619 = 7,369

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB15,003,000 (2020: RMB28,483,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of RMB4,209,000 (2020: RMB15,200,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax liabilities as at
31 December 2021 in respect of undistributed earnings of
RMB177,113,000 (2020: RMB69,035,000) as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries and it has been
determined that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRMEE

30. Bz &

Number of
ordinary
shares

EiEHE

Amount
equivalent to
RMB’000
ZRLE
ARETT

Nominal value
ordinary
shares

LTEREE

Authorised: JETE
Shares of the Company with AAEFREMEO0.01E
nominal value of HK$0.01 each o) 4)
At 22 October 2020 (date of R2020F 108 22H
incorporation), 31 December (A BHE)

2020 and 1 January 2021 (a) 2020512 A31 A &

20211818 (a) 38,000,000 380,000 334
Addition (b) ANE (b) 4,962,000,000 49,620,000 43,613
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 43,947
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR

At 22 October 2020 (date of 20205108 22H

incorporation) (a) (sEf Az B 8) (a) 1,000 10 —
Addition (c) NE(C) 53 1 —
At 31 December 2020 and 1 R2020F 12 A31H &

January 2021 202141 A1H 1,053 11 —
Capitalisation issue on 21 June MW2021F6 A21HE

2021 (d) EEELT (d) 749,998,947 7,499,989 6,241
Company’s listing (e) KRR ET(e) 266,851,000 2,668,510 2,221
At 31 December 2021 M2021412831H 1,016,851,000 10,168,510 8,462

Notes:

As at the date of incorporation, the authorised share capital of the Company
was HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each. Upon the incorporation of the Company, 1,000 shares were
issued at par to its then shareholder.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders on 21 June
2021, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000, divided into 5,000,000,000 shares with a par
value of HK$0.01 each.

On 30 December 2020, the Company issued 53 shares with a cash
consideration of HK$1 to Createwisdom International Limited and the
authorised number of ordinary shares of the Company was increased 1,053
with a par value of HK$0.01 each.

(@)

REMRIBH AAFAMNEERARA
380,000 7T * % 438,000,000 = f% T &
0.01BTTHIR D ° KRR RIFEMA % © RE
B[R & & A B 2577 1,000 0 B 17 ©

R EMN20214F6 A21 BB BN EE R
= ¢ ANR A A A T R AN B1380,0005% JT 1 &=
50,000,0003% 7T * % /45,000,000,000 % & B%
H{EC.01B TR °

R2020F12 A308 * AR RIAR &R E1E
TREIEEEERARZETSSEBRMD - AR
AIAAE E@RE=E 1,053/ - BREE
0.0187TT °
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholder passed on 21 June
2021, conditional on the share premium account of the Company being
credited as a result of the global offering, the Directors are authorized to
capitalize an amount of HK$7,499,989.47 (equivalent to RMB6,242,000)
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company by
applying such sum towards the paying up in full at par a total of
749,998,947 shares for allotment and issue to holders of shares whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on the date of
passing such resolutions in proportion to their then existing respective
shareholding in the Company.

On 15 July 2021, the Company issued a total of 250,000,000 ordinary shares
at a price of HK$3.06 per share as a result of the completion of the global
offering (the “Global Offering”). 16,851,000 shares were issued upon the
exercise of the over-allotment option in connection with the Global Offering
on 11 August 2021 at a price of HK$3.06 per share. Gross proceeds from
the issue amounted to HK$816,564,000 (equivalent to RMB679,593,000).
After deducting the underwriting fees and other capitalised listing expenses,
net proceeds from the issue amounted to RMB661,565,000, of which,
RMB2,221,000 was recorded as share capital and RMB659,344,000 was
recorded as share premium.

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

30. & )
faE - (#8)

(d)

RIBERER2021F6 A21 B BB EERZE
= FAAFNKG S ERESREE MG
HIRE  EFEREBARRRG®ERNE
IE £ #07,499,980.47 B L (HE R AR K
6,242,00070) B EAR - HIEABAZSEIR
H{ESUR A ££749,998,047 & B 15  #E M
BAARRER B HRYIAN R 5 AR 2 A A%
BEBA  RESEBSARARRNREL
BIFL s REBITZERD ©

MN2021F7A158 AR RIETER 2 REE
([RIREEE ) R ESA3.06/8 THBIRE HEIT
250,000,0000% & i@ f% - 202148 A118 17
FREPREEFEANBELRRIER  EEKR
3.06/8 LI [E 15 39716,851,000 0% A% 1D ° 31T
4 7 /816,564,000 T (A E W AR
679,593,0007T) ° R B HE A K EMmE AR
tWEA% BOMBREFEAARE
661,565,0007T * HH ARM2,221,0007T AR
B ARA - A R#659,344,0007T Bl A BR 71|
BRI HE o

31. KABMBRRRR R

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFTT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHEBARNKE 58,602 58,602
Current assets mEEE
Prepayment TEfTRIA 3,462 3,462
Amount due from a subsidiary FE Y — Rt B A Bl 3 E 628,955 =
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY 25,097 =
657,514 3,462
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables b S 3R 11,207 11,207
Amount due to a subsidiary FEA — R B A Rl 3 IE 112 4,540
11,319 15,747
Net current liabilities mBEEFE 646,195 (12,285)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREEE 704,797 46,317
Net assets BEFE 704,797 46,317
Capital and reserves BAR K
Share capital & 7 8,462 =
Reserves ] 696,335 46,317
Total equity e 48 R 704,797 46,317
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32. RESERVES 32. f#fE
(a) Group (a) =EE
Share premium % 153 ita (8
Share premium represents the difference between the B RERAQREZETEARSG
consideration and the par value of the issued and paid up FRENEEE FAERE -

shares of the Company.

Capital reserve BXE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETRT ARETT

Reorganisation =R (a) 64,599 64,599

Deemed contribution RIELHE (b) 7,331 7,331

Xier Technology BREHE () 15,837 15,837

Shengquan Property B (d) (114,374) (114,374)

Zhida Xiaorui NG (e) 7,508 7,508

(19,099) (19,099)

(a) The accumulated capital contribution from the then shareholders of the (@) EERRERRENRZEBEH
group companies in excess of the consideration given in relation to FHABRTEHRERLD ©
the Reorganisation.

(b) The Group disposed of Zhejiang Shengquan Security Services Co., Ltd. (b) HZE2018F12A31HLLFE » AEE

(the “Shengquan Security”) to an entity controlled by Mr. Hu at a LAR(B AR % 11,000,000 7T (A # 78 A 42
consideration of RMB11,000,000 during the year ended 31 December FINEBEEMNIREREREER
2018 and the Group bought back Shengquan Security during the ARI([HRERR])  AEEREHE
Reorganisation. Shengquan Security was engaged in the Listing HEEERRET - REREMELEME
Business, the consideration received was accounted for as a deemed % HZ=2018F 12 A31 A 1L F E W E
contribution from the controlling shareholder of the Group during the HREARS ARIEREBIERRR
year ended 31 December 2018. HE -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group injected capital HZE2019F12A31A L FE » KNEHE
of RMB3,669,000 to a company engaged in the Excluded Business. M—RRERIEBHREEEAR
Since the financial information of the Excluded Business, the capital #3,669,0007T © F 7 Bk HN3E 15 09 BA 75
injection was accounted for as a deemed distribution to the controlling BR - OEBEARTIRAREmA S BT
shareholder of the Group. BREDIK °

(© The shareholder of Xier Technology has acquired or disposed of certain (© FRERBRFEEASLEEBRES
equity interests in Xier Technology, which resulted in increases or TR - B I AR A IR
decreases in non-controlling interests and corresponding decreases or B AN AE RIAR FER > 338 hn o

increases in capital reserves.
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

(@) Group (Continued)

Capital reserve (Continued)

(d) During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the then
shareholder of Shengquan Property acquired additional interests in
Shengquan Property, which resulted in decreases in non-controlling
interests of RMB1,644,000 and RMB4,851,000 and corresponding
increases in the capital reserves.

On 16 November 2020, Shengquan Technology acquired 95% equity
interest in Shengquan Property at a consideration of RMB55,800,000
from its then shareholders. Upon completion of the transaction,
Shengquan Property was 95% owned by Shengquan Technology and
5% owned by Zhida Xiaorui.

In August and September 2020, Shengquan Property acquired certain
fellow subsidiaries engaged in the Listing Business from the entities
controlled by Mr. Hu at total consideration of RMB72,665,000.

In September 2020, Shengquan Property disposed certain subsidiaries
engaged in the Excluded Business to the entities controlled by Mr. Hu
at a total consideration of RMB7,596,000.

(e) On 1 November 2020, Zhi Da Xiao Rui (Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhida
Xiaorui”), an entity controlled by another pre-IPO investor, agreed to
inject HK$8,900,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,508,000) to
Shengquan Property in return of 5% of its equity interest.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC, when declaring dividend, the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate not less than 10%
of their profit after taxation calculated under PRC accounting
rules and regulations to the statutory reserve fund, until the
accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the respective companies. The statutory reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset losses brought forward from prior years
or to increase the paid up capital of respective companies.
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R #1,644,0007T & A K % 4,851,000
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M2020%11 168 @ BaREAa®E2
V)5 E R AR U HL 5% M ARHE - KRB
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BREREA SN
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72,665,0007T °
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~aE AR ERARKT,596,0007T
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32.
(a) F%E @

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(@) Group (Continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. To this
end, the Group aims to price services commensurately with
the level of risk and secure access to financing at a
reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy remained
unchanged throughout the reporting periods.

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and lease liabilities)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital represents total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, less
unaccrued proposed dividends.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group maintained
at net cash position.

EXER

AEBEEREANTERRRERE
AEBREHFELE  EMBEER
BREHREE R SN EEMEE
WM B AERBEEEEB
ARk F RIRTS EBARIZE
BRARGHE ARENEBEK
B R (E S e i A -

AEEENKEHBREBFEEAL
RERHERRE - Bt KHE
BERFRAEREBEE (BIETE
ERREFRARBERB) ARG H
KB BRRE MR EEY - KH
RERNEARRESBREGES
PR R AT RURA R,

PN20214F K 202012 A31 8 » &
EEBHEFREMA -

(b) Company (b) XAT

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total

B 53 i (R AXfHE RaTEE fst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TRT AR¥TT AR®TET

At 22 October 2020 2020510 522 H (5%

(date of incorporation) Az B 8) = — — —
Total comprehensive 2EAYBE

expense — — (12,285) (12,285)
Effect of the Reorganisation B4 &2 (M)

(note) — 58,602 — 58,602
At 31 December 2020 and  #2020%F 12831 H &

1 January 2021 202141 A1H - 58,602 (12,285) 46,317
Total comprehensive 2HEAX BT

expense = = (3,085) (3,085)
Issue of shares B3 <) 659,344 - - 659,344
Capitalisation issue BEAR{ELT (6,241) = = (6,241)
At 31 December 2021 K2021F12A31H 653,103 58,602 (15,370) 696,335
Note: The amount represented mainly the excess of the aggregate net asset MisE: eI BRI TEBEESEMESE

values of the Listing Business over the par value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange pursuant to the Reorganisation.

BHEARRREEAARAT A 1T
AR E{E RS o
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HEMB R RME

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any material capital commitments as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for note 27 disclosed, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

33. EXKiIE

MR20214F K2020F12 A31H » A&EEI
AT B KE A AIE -

34. S REE

BB sE27 AT R & A - 122021 4F &% 2020
F12A3818 - KEB I E T EAKR
BE-

35. MEFHEAN BRI

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total

L-E HEAR L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARET T

At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 26,500 7,240 33,740
Financing cash flows BMEBRSRE (26,500) (2,096) (28,596)
Non-cash changes B &

— Addition — ANE = 89 89

— Finance costs — BEKA — 318 318
At 31 December 2020 and 2020512 A31H &

1 January 2021 202141 A1 H = 5,551 5,551
Financing cash flows BMERSRE - (2,781) (2,781)
Non-cash changes RS

— Addition — ANE - 990 990

— Finance costs — BEKA = 229 229
At 31 December 2021 R20214F12A31H = 3,989 3,989
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FEUBHRFTME
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. FABE A XS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in BirE M EREREMEHEEOBL &
the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the FHASN  REBRE E2021412 A31H
following significant related party transactions for the year ended IEFEEI TAERBEHAIRS -
31 December 2021.
(a) Name of and relationship with related parties (a) FABES MR 255 R
1]k
During the year, transactions with the following parties are FRNETINZETNISERRMHE
considered as related party transactions: RS :
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
o) i Rt AL BB F
Mr. Hu #B%t & Ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company
R R B BRI AR AR R
Dexin China Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries Controlled by Mr. Hu
(“Dexin China Group”)
EEPBRERERATREMRBAR ((EEPEHER))
BEFBEERBERAFRRENB AR ((EEHEEKE]) FR A 5T A 1E
(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) EEEEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, TEBFZEEEBEAEME (BEEN
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and RAREERAMEEZEERENR
other members of key management as disclosed in Note TH (BN aE15FT i ER) ) i T ¢
15, is as follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Salaries and other short-term e REMBEEEESRET
employee benefits 3,104 2,591
2021 R e EERZEHABRAT 157



S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBHRFTME
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. Bt A XS (@)
(c) Significant related party transactions (c) EXFMARS
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the H E£2020%F &2021F12 A318 1k
Group had the following significant transactions with related FE - -ASEEBABAIEBUNTE
parties. The transactions amounts disclosed represent the ARG -HENX G CBIETIHEA
transactions with relevant parties during the periods when T3 A7 5 B B B 0T B B 2 HEAT Y
those parties were related parties of the Group. R5 o
2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
() Provision of services () RER®E
— Dexin China Group and its joint — BEEPEEERK
ventures and associates HE&EDhER
L RW/NC] 216,694 199,865
— Other entities controlled by — HASE ARSI E At
Mr. Hu T 33,986 15,894
250,680 215,759
(i) Rental expenses (short-term and low (i) &5z (58 8 M K(B
value leases) BERE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — BREFESBERAS
ventures and associates RTS8 NS 1,465 1,216
— Other entities controlled by — EH?EET il /9 E A
Mr. Hu T - 40
1,465 1,256
(i) Purchase of carparks (i) BEFEHS
— Dexin China Group and its joint — RIEFEREK
ventures and associates BEERBERQ 7 = 11,013
(iv) Acquisition of right-of-use assets  (iv) BEAE AEEE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — BEEPREEEK
ventures and associates HEEhER
/NG - 32
(v) Finance expenses v) ERY
— Other entities controlled by — HASE TSI E Aty
Mr. Hu T = 281
(vi) Finance income (vi) EEEUA
— Other entities controlled by — MR ARSI E A
Mr. Hu o = 1,688
(vii) Disposal of financial assets at fair  (vii) ﬁ’iﬁ&’& fAEEER
value through profit or loss HEFHTABENSR
BE
— Other entities controlled by — HASE TSI E Aty
Mr. Hu T - 30,000
All of the transactions above were carried out in the normal LR BERSGHEREBEBHIE
course of the Group’s business and on terms as agreed BRERURRZSEHHE R IGER
between the transacting parties. THET o
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SFEMFBHRFTMEE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. FBt AR S @)
(d) Balances with related parties (d) B EREE 5 BY 45 6R
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETF T
Trade related & 5 1R
Trade receivables B 5 rEWRIAE
— Dexin China Group and its joint 1*1*‘43 BEEERHEES
ventures and associates B N BN T 21,147 23,338
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — — #A4% 4 22 il 89 H th & B2 8,798 2,824
Other receivables H b pE W RIE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EETFEERRES
ventures and associates B ENEE R 54,550 101
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu  — #A%c A1 5l a0 H b T 42 45 =
Trade payables 5 RN IAE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EEHPEEERES
ventures and associates B R E QT 25 98
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu  — #A% 12§l &) H 4th & 82 = 7
Other payables b FE A 3R
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EEFEEERHEE
ventures and associates S E N E R A 358 51
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — — #i4% 4 22 il 89 H th & B2 382 —
Contract liabilities AEHBEE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — ?*1*‘:13 HEERES
ventures and associates B E N AR 1,434 2,458
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu  — #A4E A2 il &) H 4th & A2 = 2
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Dexin China Group and its joint = ?ﬂ*ﬁP BEEBEREAS
ventures and associates B E RS R A = 66
Non-trade related JEE 5486
Other payables o FE T 3R
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu  — #A4% A 22 il 89 H 4th & B2 - 338

Other receivables and other payables due from or due to
related parties are unsecured, interest-free, and with terms
on demand or in accordance with related agreements.

R Wk 3K A B Bk T3 ) EL At B MR IR
AEREMEMNRASERR LR
B HRAREREEXRENA

E A
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HEMB R RME

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Borrowings

36. EABE B XS @)

(e) f&=

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSTT ARETF T

At 1 January K1A1H = 16,500

Addition hE = 7,300

Repayment BE - (23,800)

At 31 December M®12A31H - —
() Loans to related parties ( EIEAEEHER

2021 2020

2021 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

At 1 January ®1A18 - =

Payment X f5f - 70,000

Receipt U BY = (70,000)

At 31 December M®12H31H - =
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mEMBRRMEE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. AT T EMEBATHE
OF THE COMPANY

Country/place and date

of incorporation/ Attributable equity

establishment/principal Registered/issued interest of Principal
Company name country of operation and paid-in capital the Group activities
HEMRIL RIIMER
WERBY,EiE 2t ERITR
AS&B EXEER BHEX AREEERE TEEH
2021 2020
PLPAleal 20204
Directly owned:
HiEMR :
Shengping International Limited British Virgin Islands/ Not applicable/— 100% 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong
26 October 2020
BFREBEARAR RBERRAHS /B TER/ — 100% 100% 1REER
2020410 H26H
Zhirui International Limited British Virgin Islands/ Not applicable/— 100% 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong
21 September 2020
BinEE AR AR RBERRAHS B TER/ — 100% 100% 1REEKR
20206 9H21H
Indirectly owned:
SRR
Sheng Quan Holding (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/ Not applicable/ — 100% 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong
2 November 2020
BREER (FE)BRAR BEBE TEm,/ — 100% 100% REER
2020411 A2H
Zhejiang Shengquan Technology Co., Ltd Hong Kong/ Not applicable/ — 100% 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong
16 November 2020
AR ERRERAR BEBE TEm,/ — 100% 100% REER
2020411 A16H
Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB58,740,000/ 100% 100% Property
29 March 2004 RMB58,740,000 management
BEREMERBERRR HRE AR 58,740,000 100% 100% #EER
20043 H29A TS AR
58,740,0007T
Zhejiang Shengjie Environment Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% 100% Environmental
8 May 2014 RMB10,000,000 cleaning
HTRZIRIBE T IRAR DA HE,HE AR %10,000,000 100% 100% BRFEEZ
2014%5A8H TS AR
10,000,0007T
Hangzhou Junde Commercial Operations PRC/PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% 100% Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. 16 May 2019 RMB10,000,000 operation
MMEEEXELERER AR HE,/HE AR #10,000,000 100% 100% mMEEE
201945168 T/ AR
10,000,0007T
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FEMBRRMEE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. AT T EMEBATHRE &
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Country/place and date

of incorporation/ Attributable equity

establishment/principal Registered/issued interest of Principal
Company name country of operation and paid-in capital the Group activities
MR RIIMER
WERBYEE 2 EBITR
AT &E FEEEER BHEX AEEEIERIE TEEB
2021 2020
2021 [elorlks
Hangzhou Julin Lifestyle Services Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB10,000,000/ — 100% 100% Wholesale and
2 November 2018 retail
MM AEEEERB AR A A HRE AR ¥#10,000,000 100% 100% #ERTE
2018411 A2A 7T/ —
Zhejiang Shengquan Security Services Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB11,000,000/ 100% 100% Security services
25 June 2015 RMB11,000,000
MIBEZREBRBEERAA HE, AR 11,000,000 100% 100% X7 4 AR 7%
201546 A25H T AR
11,000,0007T
Xier Technology PRC/PRC RMB32,918,012/ 51% 51% Technology
24 September 2015 RMB29,918,012
MINBR B AR A A HRE AR ¥32,918,012 51% 51% B
20159 H24H T AR
29,918,0127T
Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd PRC/PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% 100% Property services
13 March 2014 RMB5,000,000
MM EERERBERA A HRE AR ¥5,000,000 100% 100% % R%
2014434138 7T AR
5,000,0007T
Dexin Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB50,000,000/ — 100% 100% Property services
2 January 2019
BEVERBER QR HEHE AR #50,000,000 100% 100% YIRS
201941 A2AH T/ —
Hangzhou Deyu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB10,000,000/ — 70% 70% Commercial
14 September 2020 management
MM EERER QA HRE AR #10,000,000 70% 70% FEER
20209 A 14 A 7T/ —
Hangzhou Xiangyu Property Management Services  PRC/PRC RMB1,000,000/ — 68% 68% Apartment
Co., Ltd. 14 September 2020 management
MMEBYEEERBERAA HEHE AR #1,000,000 68% 68% REER
202049 A 14 H 7T/ —
Huzhou Guomao Property Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB1,250,000/ 60% 60% Property services
12 July 2001 RMB1,250,000
WMNMBEWERREEDA HEHE AR 1,250,000 60% 60% WIERY
200147 A12H 7T ARE
1,250,0007T

EMBARLEE TR AN HEEX
HRAAREEEBERASNEETX
BB EMR

The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort by
the management of the Group in translating their Chinese names
as they do not have an official English name.
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

39.

Acquisition of joint venture

On 21 December 2021, the Group entered into a framework
agreement to acquire the 39.2% equity interest in a third party
company, Hangzhou Kaichuan investment management Co.,Ltd
(“Hanzhou Kaichuan”), at a consideration of RMB5,880,000. The
Group has prepaid all of the consideration in December 2021. Up
to the date of this report, the transactions has been completed.
Upon the completion of the acquisition, Hangzhou Kaichuan will
become a joint venture of the Group.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 May 2022.

38.

39.

mEMBRRMEE

HEHEBEIE

KEEESEL%E

R2021F128218 » KREB T —1DIE
BinE o LWKEBEE =7 2 rmMel)I[RE
EIEARAA ([HMELIN]) Z39.2%0%
# - KRB A AR%5,880,0005T - AEE
ER2021F12 ABMNAENRE - HEAR
WMERH ZXFE K - RUEE TR
% NN BAEBZAERE -

HEESMBERE

ZEG AU RRN2022F5 A27HES
EoHERIFETE -
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Financial Summary

BB =

2021 2020 2019 2018
20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
| ARETIT O ARETIT O ARETT
Key financial information TEMBEHR
Revenue A 870,422 692,319 512,850 397,833
Gross profit E5 299,082 235,757 144,926 95,119
Profit for the period B 8 A B 110,050 105,807 50,550 22,462
— Including non-controlling — BIEFEERER
interests 11,828 8,617 1,154 101
— Attributable to owners of the — A TIEE AFE(L
Company 98,222 97,190 49,396 22 361
December December December December
2021 2020 2019 2018
Clphle Pz 202046128 20194F128 20184128
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R AR®BTT ARBTFIT  ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,775 24,254 60,285 72,792
Current assets MENEE 1,208,762 420,689 384,475 243,140
Total assets BERT 1,238,537 444,943 444,760 315,932
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 569 2,626 9,858 11,054
Current liabilities mEBAE 377,757 353,889 285,846 202,703
Total liabilities BERAT 378,326 356,515 295,704 213,757
Total equity M 4BER 860,211 88,428 149,056 102,175
Interest attributable to the KABEA NEIEER
owners of the Company 835,657 75,870 150,814 98,615
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